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REGISTERED OFFICE
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Sino Harbour Property Group Limited (“Sino Harbour”
or the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) is a property developer focused on residential
properties in Jiangxi Province, the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”). The residential projects developing
by the Group are coupled with retail shops and other
commercial office premises.

The Group’s first project was Nanchang Honggu Kaixuan
(FE4IA5HE), a residential and commercial development
in Honggu Tan Central District of Nanchang City, Jiangxi
Province, the PRC. Nanchang Honggu Kaixuan occupies
a total site area of approximately 80,521 square metres
(“sq. m.”), comprising residential and commercial
development with an aggregate saleable gross floor area
("GFA") of approximately 304,839 sq. m.

In 2009, the Group further explored and capitalised
opportunities in Fuzhou (#&J!), Jiangxi Province, the PRC to
develop the second project Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting Yuan (&
JNEEZEEERR). Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting Yuan occupies a total
site area of approximately 190,753 sg. m. with a planned
aggregate saleable GFA of approximately 301,989 sg. m.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2012, the
Group’s joint venture Jiangxi Ganghong Investment Co.,
Ltd. (T FaB R E B R A F) started the pre-sale of Yichun
Royal Lake City (E&MHM) in Yichun, Jiangxi Province,
the PRC. Yichun Royal Lake City occupies a total site area
of approximately 607,084 sg. m. with a planned aggregate
saleable GFA of approximately 1,244,115 sg. m.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2013, the
Group commenced the development of Nanchang Sino
Harbour Kaixuan City (F&#EES5ES,), formerly known
as Nanchang Sino Harbour Island Villa (5 & & #& #k
), in Nanchang, Jiangxi Province, the PRC. Nanchang
Sino Harbour Kaixuan City occupies a total site area of
approximately 719,547.5 sg. m. with a planned aggregate
saleable GFA of approximately 1,004,788 sg. m.

ZEFMWESBEAERAR ([EEB] K [F 2D
A REMBAR (5 [A~KE]) 5—FH
IRFEHEARLNE ([HPE]) IEEEE
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EEFMEIER -
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In March 2013, the Group succeeded in acquiring a parcel
of land with a total site area of approximately 20,482
sg. m. for the development of Hangzhou Ganglian Sino
Africa Tower (F/NEBHIERE) in Hangzhou, Zhejiang
Province, the PRC. The land would be developed into a
commercial complex with office premises and retail shops.
The development of Hangzhou Ganglian Sino Africa Tower
is expected to be commenced in the year ending 31 March
2015.

Going forward, the Group will make an effort to replicate
its successful investment model in property projects with
strong potential elsewhere in the PRC in order to generate
better growth.
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Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present to the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) the results in the financial
performance of the Company and its subsidiaries for the
year ended 31 March 2014.

In the year ended 31 March 2014, revenue was mainly
derived from the sales of residential properties of Fuzhou
Hua Cui Ting Yuan (¥ N ZE %X FZ ft) and Yichun Royal
Lake City (E&EMHM) and the sales of commercial units
of Nanchang Honggu Kaixuan (9 & 4L A 8ljiE). Due to
the decrease in the GFA delivered to buyers, revenue in
the year ended 31 March 2014 moderately decreased
compared with the previous financial year. Benefited from
the valuation gain arisen from the transfer of commercial
properties with GFA of approximately 19,189 sq. m. to
investment properties in the year ended 31 March 2014,
the Group recorded profit attributable to owners of the
Company amounted to RMB143.8 million, representing an
increase of 13.7% over that of last year.

The Group would launch the pre-sale of our fourth project,
Nanchang Sino Harbour Kaixuan City (F &ZE8EEH), in
the year ending 31 March 2015. The board (the “Board”)
of the directors (the “Directors”) believes the sale of
Nanchang Sino Harbour Kaixuan City would speed up
cash cycle, and thus improve the financial position of the
Group.

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to explore new
opportunities arisen from key reform initiatives in the PRC,
such as new urbanisation models, household registration

BRRE :
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reform, relaxation of the one-child policy and marketisation
of rural land, set out in the Third Plenary Session of the
18th Central Committee of the Communist Party of China
on November 2013.

APPRECIATION

Finally, I would like to express my sincere appreciation
to our Shareholders and investors for your support and
confidence in the Group. | would also like to express my
gratitude to the Board for their guidance and to thank the
Group’s management and employees for their diligence
and contributions to the Group.

CHAN Heung Ling
Chairlady

Hong Kong, 24 June 2014
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REVENUE

During the year under review, the Group achieved revenue
of approximately RMB476.3 million mainly from the sales
of residential units of Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting Yuan (#E/IZE
#FZP7) and Yichun Royal Lake City (E&#H), together
with the commercial units of Nanchang Honggu Kaixuan
(@ & 41 & 9l JiE). Revenue decreased by approximately
14.9% over the previous financial year. The total gross
floor area (“GFA") of the residential and commercial
properties (excluding car parking spaces) sold in the year
under review amounted to approximately 86,496 sg. m.

The following table sets out an analysis of the revenue for
(i) residential properties, (ii) commercial properties, and (iii)
car parking spaces during the year under review:

A

REIEFE  NEEHFSRANAEARKAL76.3
BB FEREHEBMNEEXERKEEMY
W EEEN - EREEANIECHEEE
i o WAR E—FRDL14.9% - REIEF
BEEEEEAEEDE (TRIEF $u> BiREE
EiE ([BEEE]) 497786,496F 75K

TRBFIBEEEAEEDE  ()EEDE
R i S 2 A S

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2014 31 March 2013 % change
BZE BZE
—E-0F —E—=
=A=+—-8B =A=+-H
LHEFEE LHFEE #HE5K
(i)  Residential 0y fE=
- GFA sold (in sg. m.) —CDEFEEME
(AR KET) 83,130 92,210 -9.8%
— Average selling price (“ASP") —FHERE
(RMB per sg. m.) (BF7K
ARE) 4,964 4,510 +10.1%
— Revenue (approx. RMB’000) — A (BN EH
Fir) 412,622 415,903 -0.8%
(i Commercial (i)
— GFA sold (in sq. m.) —DEREEEBE
(LA 75 KET) 3,366 7,773 -56.7%
— ASP (RMB per sg. m.) —FHEE
(BFHK
ARE) 14,503 16,426 -11.7%
— Revenue (approx. RMB’000) — A (BN B
For) 48,818 127,681 -61.8%
(i) Car parking spaces (i) f=EAL
— Revenue (approx. RMB’000) — WA (AR
For) 14,899 16,334 -8.8%
Total revenue (approx. RMB’000) WALEE (AN R TFT) 476,339 559,918
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COST OF SALES AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

Cost of sales decreased from approximately RMB369.3
million in the previous financial year to approximately
RMB324.2 million for the year under review. In the
previous financial year, a greater portion of revenue was
derived from the delivery of commercial units which have a
significantly higher gross profit margin compared with the
greater proportion of residential units sold during the year
under review. Consequently, gross profit margin decreased
from 34.1% for the previous financial year to 31.9% for
the year under review.

OTHER INCOME

Other income increased from approximately RMB41.0
million in the previous financial year to approximately
RMB107.9 million in the year under review. The increase
mainly represented the increase in net fair value gain
of the Group’s investment properties derived from the
transfer of commercial units comprising of approximately
19,189 sg. m. to the Group’s investment properties during
the year under review.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Selling and distribution expenses increased from
approximately RMB13.3 million in the previous financial
year to approximately RMB14.6 million in the year under
review. The higher selling expenses in the year under
review was mainly due to the increase in marketing
expenses for Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting Yuan (MEM ZEZERERT)
and Yichun Royal Lake City (B &5 H).

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses increased to approximately
RMB30.7 million in the year under review from
approximately RMB20.2 million in the previous financial
year. The increase was mainly attributable to the increase in
staff costs, bank charges and land use tax of approximately
by RMB1.2 million, RMB1.4 million and RMB3.2 million
respectively.

HEMARENR

HEXAR F—HMEHARE369.3E5ETLHD
ZREEENAREI2BET - Nt —§
F RMABBEAE D REWESEM RN - &
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PFZ34.1% FNEERIBEFE 231.9% °

Hwl A

HW AR E—FFHOARBL BB LEER
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AU FEEE N o

HERTHER

HEMDHERMBE L —HFHARKIZZES
TEMELBEFEOARK146A 8T - [
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BEAW T 5 E I E RIE TR -

EEEH
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PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

As a cumulative effect of the foregoing factors, the
Group had recorded a profit before tax of approximately
RMB214.4 million in the year under review, representing
an increase of approximately 8.2% from approximately
RMB198.2 million in the previous financial year.

Profit for the year attributed to the owners of the
Company increased by approximately 13.7% from
approximately RMB126.4 million in the previous financial
year to approximately RMB143.8 million in the year under
review.

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

Interest in a joint venture increased from approximately
RMB174.1 million as at 31 March 2013 to RMB182.4
million as at 31 March 2014. The increase represented the
advance to a joint venture by the Group for Yichun Royal
Lake City (E&#D#H) Phases 3 to 6.

PROPERTIES HELD UNDER DEVELOPMENT

As at 31 March 2014, the Group’s properties held under
development increased to approximately RMB1,154.5
million from approximately RMB1,066.0 million as at
31 March 2013. The balance represented the projects,
namely Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting Yuan (MEJNZEZEEEBR) Phase
3, Nanchang Sino Harbour Kaixuan City (B &/28 e,
formerly known as Nanchang Sino Harbour Island Villa (78
EEBME)) Phase 1 and Yichun Royal Lake City (E&/
%K) Phase 2, under development during the year under
review.

FREF

HRAUNERAZZHREFE  AEBRREFE
BEBRMANRFNOARE21445870 B E—
BEHARKI08 2B TIERAI8.2% °

AKABHEBEARBEFRNZNE E—FHOAR
K126 4B TERERBFENARE143.8
BB BREL13.7% -
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H—REELE I ETAERT :ifﬂ:
+— E%AEMWME%%PE RN_E—
F=ZA=+—BAR¥18248ETT ° ?ﬁﬁﬁ
mﬁé$%lﬁa?§ﬁ,ﬁﬂi&”—ﬁﬂi%/\ﬁﬂmm
EFEELBRTE -

ﬁ§¢%¥
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PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

Properties held for sale increased from approximately
RMB311.2 million as at 31 March 2013 to approximately
RMB414.2 million as at 31 March 2014. The increase was
mainly due to the transfer of the completed residential
property units of Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting Yuan (MEJNZEZERE
Ft) Phase 2 to properties held for sale in the year under
review.

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

As at 31 March 2014, the Group’s prepayments and other
receivables amounted approximately RMB517.2 million,
compared to approximately RMB152.8 million as at 31
March 2013. The increase was mainly attributable to the
prepayment of approximately RMB412.2 million to the
Bureau of Land Resources of Hangzhou (#n/HTHE+ &R
/@) as the consideration for the land parcel in Hangzhou,
Zhejiang Province, the PRC. The Group intends to develop
the land parcel as a commercial complex including retail
shops, office premises as well as cultural and community
centres.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUALS, RECEIPTS
IN ADVANCE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Accounts payable decreased to approximately RMB24.0
million as at 31 March 2014 from approximately RMB29.3
million as at 31 March 2013, the balance mainly comprised
amount payable to suppliers for construction costs incurred
in respect of the Group’s properties under development.

Accruals, receipts in advance and other payables mainly
comprise the advance receipts from customers in respect
of deposit and prepayments for the Group’s property pre-
sales, and the accrued construction costs and project-
related expenses that are based on the progress of project
development but are not due for payment.

FEWE
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Accruals, receipts in advance and other payables increased
to approximately RMB653.2 million as at 31 March 2014
from approximately RMB430.6 million as at 31 March
2013. The increase mainly represented the advance
receipts from customers for the deposits and prepayments
for the Group’s property pre-sales and the provision of
construction cost of the Group.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

In the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group had
recorded a net cash outflow of approximately RMB368.7
million from operating activities, mainly as a result of the
prepayment to the Bureau of Land Resources of Hangzhou
as the consideration for the land parcel in Hangzhou,
Zhejiang Province, the PRC and the payment of Enterprise
Income Tax and Land Appreciation Tax. The outflow was
partially offset by operating profit before working capital
changes.

Net cash outflow from investing activities for the year
under review was approximately RMB317.2 million, which
was mainly due to the increase in pledged deposits of
approximately RMB302.0 million.

Net cash generated from financing activities for the year
under review was approximately RMB514.4 million mainly
representing the receipts from new bank and other loans.

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had cash and bank
balances of approximately RMB67.8 million (31 March
2013: approximately RMB240.9 million) and bank
and other loans of approximately RMB1,123.7 million
(31 March 2013: approximately RMB533.5 million).

The Group expects that income generated from business
operation and borrowings will continue to be major
sources of funding in the coming financial year. As a
result, the Group will continue to strengthen cash flow
management, improve the efficiency of capital returns of
projects and strictly control the cost and various expenses.

RZZE—WNF=A=+—H8 " Est5IE  BK
REREMENRERRNR_ZT—=F=A=
+—BHARKEI0EBETEMEHNARE
653.2BE L BNEEAEFPRAEBEMETE
EMYXNZREREMIBUARRNER 2 FEIR
FREEPKA o

BE_T—NF=A=1+—RIFE ~5E
BR2EHEEREALFENS/ARE368.7
BB F2haRAMMNTELIERBEX &
[RIBE RGN R BT A MMM 2 L2 R
BUARGEMER R LB EHRT R AT -
ZHEEREBOWKLEECEIA L2 HE N

P sH

REBEFE  RETBZHESTEFEEOAA
R¥E31726B8 T TEZEHRNAEEDEBER
BN ARE302.08 BT -

REBEFE BELIIMELEZRSFENS
ARBS14 488 TERINERITEEME
BPTU R 2 FRIR -

R-ZZE—NF=ZA=+—8 A&EEREKIE
THEBOBARKISAET (ZE—=F=
A=1+—H : HAR®E2409F & ) UAKIETT
FEMERNAEARE1123.788T (ZE—
—F=ZA=+—H: HARKS335EHEL) °
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REBAREE  AAEESEENRES
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BORROWINGS AND GEARING RATIO
Bank and other loans
As at 31 March 2014, the Group had bank and other loans

of approximately RMB1,123.7 million (2013: RMB533.5
million) as follows:

EEREXHEKELR
RITREMEK
R-Z—MFE=ZA=+—8 FEEZRTR

HMWERHOARKE1123.78 8L (ZE—=
F£: ARMS335HET) W :

2014 2013
—F-mF —F-=F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARBFT
Repayment period BN

Within one year or on demand R—F R IZEK 375,173 99,000

More than one year, but not exceeding —FAHETBBRFT
five years 748,500 434,500
1,123,673 533,500

The bank loans were denominated in HK$ and RMB and
amounted to RMB495,173,000 as at 31 March 2014 and
bore interest at floating rates ranging from 4.71% to
8.61% per annum. Other loans as at 31 March 2014 were
denominated in RMB and amounted RMB628,500,000,
and bore interest at fixed rates ranging from 6.15% to
7.95% per annum.

Gearing ratio

Gearing ratio is measured by borrowings (total amount of
bank and other loans) less related deposit collateral over
total equity. As at 31 March 2014, the Group’s gearing
ratio was 48.0%. The Group has implemented certain loan
management policies, which include close monitoring of
the gearing ratio and any changes in interest rates.

RZZE—NF=ZA=+—8 " RBIEZXUBT
MARBTEREZE A ARK495,173,0007T -
WIRNF B F471%E8.61% 2 % & F K5t
B RNZE-—ME=A=1t—BZ2HMBERI
ARETERHREAARE628,500,0007T + I
BN TEF6.15%%7.95% 2 BEEMEA -

EXRAMELR

BARBEABELXRUEE RITEEMERER)
AR R R R A SRR E - R T —
ME=ZA=1+—8 AEEZEFABRAFLE
348.0% - AEBEDHEITE TERERBE -
HABREEEEEANEABLERRNR Z(E



Sino Harbour Property Group Limited J&&EitESBE AR AR Annual Report 2013/2014 F3;

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEREN WD

15

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the contingent liabilities of the Group are set out
in note 31 of the consolidated financial statements.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Details of the capital commitments of the Group are set
out in note 29 of the consolidated financial statements.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

Most of the Group’s transactions are carried out in RMB
which is the functional currency of the Company and
most of the operating subsidiaries. Exposures to currency
exchange rates arise from certain of the Group’s cash
and bank balances which are denominated in HK dollars.
The Group does not use derivative financial instruments
to hedge its foreign currency risk. The Group reviews its
foreign currency exposures regularly and believes that there
is no significant exposure on its foreign exchange risk.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2014, the Group pledged its investment
properties, properties under development and bank
deposits of approximately RMB1,853.7 million (2013:
RMB672.8 million) to various banks and financial
institutions to secure loan facilities granted to the Group.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

The Group did not have any material acquisition or
disposal of assets, subsidiaries and affiliated companies
during the year ended 31 March 2014.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2014, there were 158 employees in the
Group. Staff remuneration package are determined in
connection with market conditions and the performance
of the individuals concerned, and are subject to review
from time to time. The Group also provides other benefits
including medical insurance, and grants discretionary
incentive bonuses to eligible staff based on their
performance and contributions to the Group.

HAREE

AEBIRBBEZFBHRNGEMBEHRERM
31 e

BXERE

AEBERNAZE ZFBHENGEMBEHRERME
29 °

SN LR

AEBRBORXZAARBET MARET)
ARRAMARZHZENB AR ZINEEY - &
KEXRRIREAEENBTIEZETRE
MIRTTHESR - AKRBYEERITES R T AN
HmEINE R o AR EE e s B NS E
g - 0 AR (S I B RSN L o

BEERH

RZZE—NF=ZA=+—H AEEBEEKE
M - R MENRITERHIARK,853.7
BET(ZTE—=F: AR%e67288& L) &
BYFETHRIEEHEBURSAERER 2
EXmE -

EARBREE
BE_Z—NE=ZA=1+—BLLFE F5E
MEETENEARBALEEE WEAQR

KEEEB AR o

BT RFMBUR

R-ZZE—OF=ZA=+—H ' A"&EBHF158%E
T-BETITHFMSBECEREMSRALEBEAL
CREMEBT @ WEATH® - NEBJMEHE
EmEd (BREERRE)  UREBERERERER
HAEEBE 7 BERAEEKE IR TRIERENE
4T o
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COMPANY UPDATE

Property Pre-sales

The cumulative results for the pre-sale and delivery of
properties under each project up to 15 May 2014 are

summarised as follows:

RERFER
YIREE

BHE—ZT-NFAATHBE  ZEBZYER
RN REHERBAIT

Nanchang Fuzhou Fuzhou Fuzhou Yichun Yichun

Honggu Hua Cui Hua Cui Hua Cui Royal Royal

Kaixuan Ting Yuan Ting Yuan Ting Yuan Lake City Lake City

Phase 2 Phase 1 Phase 2 Phase 3 Phase 1 Phase 2

MEAAHE WMNERER ENERER  BENEXER HEHHA HEMME

o — 4 . =8 —5 |

Estimated total GFA released for sale 116,214 sq. m. 91,853sg.m.  79,933sg.m.  91,107sg.m.  80,241sg. m. 28,112 sg. m.
(total units) (1,007 units) (633 units) (550 units) (887 units) (889 units) (320 units)
T AN E v B EEE 116,214 7K 91,853FAK  79933FFK  91107F A K  80241FK 28112 K
(BE(HE) (1,00718) (633f&) (550(#) (887{H) (889fE) (320f#)
Estimated total GFA pre-sold (total units) 113,954 sq. m.  84,526sg.m.  65138sq.m.  73,780sg.m.  71,371sg.m. 19,569 sq. m.
(999 units) (598 units) (498 units) (725 units) (757 units) (215 units)

D RE CERERR (BELHE) 113,954 F K 84526k  65138F K  73780FAK  T137MFAK  19,569F K
(99918) (59818) (49818) (72518) (75718) (215(8)

Percentage of pre-sale 98% 92% 81% 81% 89% 70%
BEMALE BH298 BH292 B 281 B 281 BH289 BH270
Pre-sale GFA (units pre-sold) not 124 sq. m. 2,593sq.m.  12,628sq. m. 73,780 5q. m. 4,857 sq.m. 19,569 sq. m.
handed to buyers as at 31 March 2014" (1 unit) (9 units) (64 units) (725 units) (65 units) (215 units)
HE-T-ME=ZA=+-BHEARREF 124F 8% 2593FHK  12,628F K 73780F Ak 4857FAK  19,569F Ak
JEERERE (BREEMHE)" (1) (9fH) (64{&) (72518) (65fA) (21518)
Pre-sale value not handed over to buyers RMB0.91 RMB18.18 RMB86.35 RMB375.59 RMB19.87 RMB90.25
as at 31 March 2014 million million million million million million
HE-ZT-MEZA=+-BHEARREF AR®091  AR¥1818  AR¥8635 ARK37559  AR®1987  ARE90.25
JEERE BETL BET BET BETL BETL BET
ASP per sg. m.* RMB7,329 RMB7,013 RMB6,838 RMBS5,091 RMB4,091 RMB4,612
BYAKRTHER" ARE732970  ARE70130  AR#6838T ARHS0917T ARE4091T ARE46127T
#: ASP of the projects is computed as follows: Pre-sale value not * ZEHB 2 VFHEBRHERENT - RZNE

handed over to buyers divided by Pre-sale GFA not handed

over to buyers.

Pre-sale value not handed over to buyers is computed as

follows: Pre-sales at the beginning of the year plus New pre-
sales during the year less those handed over to buyers during
the year (recognised as sales during the year).

FZRESEBRUHRRNEFZBERER

2k HARNEFPZRESBEEIAWT « Y8

ECHENFAFERESERFAECINER
(RFRERDIHE) T8
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CONSTRUCTION PROGRESS AND

DEVELOPING PROJECTS

The Group will maintain our construction scale in order
to offer enough GFA available for sale and for delivery

BEEERMABIER

AEBEGEFEBERRARHEEHEERE
EHE RN AXFHRKER - HEF - K

to support our growth in future. Currently, the Group’s SETEREIMEEENT ¢
property project under construction are as follows:
Expected
Name of Project Province City Planned GFA Completion Date
HEEH L)) W REEEER FEHRT A
Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting Yuan Phase 3 Jiangxi Fuzhou Residential: 121,405  Q4CY2014
Commercial: 4,489
i B 25 e — HA I )N {£5: 121,405 —T—MmF
RI%: 4,489 FENFERT
Nanchang Sino Harbour Kaixuan City Jiangxi Nanchang Residential: 137,668  Q4CY2014
Phase 1 Commercial: 6,464
mEEEINES 5 I M {£% : 137,668 —T—MmF
H2% 6,464 FUFERT
Nanchang Sino Harbour Kaixuan City Jiangxi Nanchang Residential: 169,763  Q1CY2016
Phase 2 Commercial: 1,993
e BN — 8 PG| (1= £=: 169,763 —TRF
B 1,993 F—FERT
Yichun Royal Lake City Phase 2 Jiangxi Yichun Residential: 105,000  Q1CY2015
B A — HA I HE {£= : 105,000 —T—AF

In the year ending 31 March 2015, the Group intends to
commence construction on two new projects with Planned

Saleable GFA of approximately 291,302 sg. m.:

/A291,302F 5K -

F—FERT

BHE_T-—RF=A=1T—HBILEFE F&E
BEnEEMENRER R EREAED

Planned

Saleable

Effective GFA

Name of Project Group Interest  City RETE

HE &R SEEERER  HWm EEER

(sq.m.)

()

Nanchang Sino Harbour Kaixuan City Phase 3 55% Nanchang, Jiangxi Province 209,374
M 2B e = IPHEEE

Hangzhou Ganglian Sino Africa Tower 100% Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province 81,928
MMERFRIERE AT AR

Total 291,302
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The Group will continue to release properties in Fuzhou
Hua Cui Ting Yuan Phase 3 and Yichun Royal Lake City
Phase 2 for pre-sales. Nanchang Sino Harbour Kaixuan City
Phase 1 is also expected to be released for pre-sale in the
year ending 31 March 2015.

LAND BANK

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had land bank with total
Planned Saleable GFA of approximately 2,846,611 sg. m.
in 5 cities in the PRC.

AEBBEERTEMNERXER B REEM
W B2 MEETRE - A EYIEN — 5
EEHTAEREE—_E—hE=A=1+—B1t%
ERELTES -

T b

R-ZT-—NE=A=+—B AEERFTEE
T A AR S| R S LM AE4) /52,846,611
IRz T fE e o

Planned
Saleable GFA
HEITE
EBEEE

(sg. m.)
(F75K)

Completed properties held for sale BEHEZERTIME 87,163
Properties under development FER Y% 546,782
Properties held for future development FHERKFAE 2 2,212,666

Total st

2,846,611
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FUTURE OUTLOOK

In the Third Plenary Session of the 18th Central Committee
of the Communist Party of China held in November 2013,
key reform initiatives included new urbanisation models,
household registration reform, relaxation of the one-child
policy, marketisation of rural land, and property tax. The
Board expects a marked shift in population to urban cities
in future, which promotes economic development of the
cities, generates larger housing demand and sustain stable
development of the property industry of the PRC in the
long run.

The Group keeps exploring the opportunities to expand
into emerging overseas market, such as South Africa,
so as to develop a diversified business model for the
maximisation of shareholders benefit.

RRREE

FHEFN\E=FreR _ET—=F+—A74
M 2@ HRENEENEREBIETNELE
N FEFENRE  HRE—ZEE - BENLiH
MiGERMED - EFSSERRRBFEEELZ A
OBZEW™  KMBEHRTLEEER - WE
EFANEES K I FTPREEHEZXRBIE
R o

AEB-ESREBHEBERE/MIFFH A
BN - WBERZITCEBAS - BERRR
HRER AR as -
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The Board presents the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities and other particulars of the
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the financial
statements. There were no significant changes in the
nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year
ended 31 March 2014.

RESULTS AND FINAL DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2014 are set out in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on page 47 of the annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2014.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Annual General Meeting of the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2014 is scheduled to be held on
Wednesday, 23 July 2014. A notice convening the Annual
General Meeting has been issued and disseminated to
Shareholders on 24 June 2014.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The share register of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 21 July 2014 to Wednesday, 23 July 2014 (both
days inclusive), during which no transfer of shares will be
effected. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company,
completed share transfer forms must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Friday, 18 July 2014.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
page 123 of the annual report.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2014
and the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as
at that date are set out on pages 44 to 122 of the annual
report.

EEgRMREAEEHE T -MNFE=A=
T—HAEFEZFRMEEREAMBERRE

FERK

ARAZEBRBRREER - TEH B A
ZEBEBMEMFABENMBHRERWEI6 -
AEEBEE-_T-NF-_A=+—HILEFEZ
ITBXEBUHERESAES -

RERKHRE

AEEHE_T-NF=A=+—"HILFEZ
FEHNFMFPLITEZEATEHBARE -

EEETEBRINBE_Z—NF=A=+—
HIEFREZRHKRE -

BRRBFRE

AKARFER —_ZE—NWFELA-+=0(EH
S)BRAEE T NFE=A=1+—HILFE
JIREAFRKE - AFARRBFASZ2BED
RZTE—NENAZ OB T RTETFRE -

LEMERNBFECTFE

ARA#HEE —_E—NFEA=-+—H(EH—)
E-Z—NMEL+A-+=H (EH=)(2HEsE
EMB) HERERMDBFELEFE - HFAT
SETIMARNEZERL - ATEEREEAR
RRAIZEEBRRAFRASYRE LRE  BE
ZZBRHBPREREBEER_Z—NFELA+
NB (EfR) THFUEBE=1+5ZREL AR T
2EBRMNBEELIEREEZTHFELERA
B MU ARBBER/ANERISIFAE A 022
i o

PBHE

AEBEFRARAMETNFZEEUREEREBEM
BHNFHRFE1238 -

[ p 3 ES]
KEBHE T NWF=A=1+—"HILFEZ
mAARARRB R AEBRZB 2R RSN F
WEAAEE1228 -
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 27 to the financial statements.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profits attributable to Shareholders, before dividends, of
RMB143,768,000 (2013: RMB126,444,000) have been
transferred to reserves. Other movements in reserves are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 50 of the annual report.

At 31 March 2014, the Company did not have reserves
available for distribution as calculated in accordance with
the provisions of the laws of Bermuda (31 March 2013:
RMB39,209,000).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

There were no purchases, sales or redemption of the
Company’s listed securities by the Company and any of its
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 March 2014.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Bye-laws of the Company or the laws of Bermuda in
relation to the issue of new Shares.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme
for its employees in Hong Kong and participates in a
defined contribution retirement scheme organized by the
PRC municipal government for its employees. Particulars of
these retirement schemes are set out in note 3.17 to the
financial statements.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company'’s securities.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in note 14 to the financial
statements.

SN
FARRRZBRAFBEHRNPBEHRERMEE27

EHREHE
MR FE(E A ORISR B A1) ARK 143,768,000
T (ZZE—=%F: AR¥126,444,0007T) O 55
EiRE - RE2EMESHH N FRES0E 2 4R
AREREEHE -

RZF-—OF=A=+—0 REERELR
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T-=%=F=+—H: AR%39,209,000
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BANK AND OTHER LOANS

Details of bank and other loans of the Group are set out in
note 25 to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2014, sales to the Group’s
largest customer and five largest customers amounted to
approximately 4.6% and approximately 9.0% respectively
of the Group’s revenue in the year.

In the year ended 31 March 2014, payment attributable
to the Group’s largest supplier and five largest suppliers
amounted to approximately 15.4% and 59.6% of total
payment under construction contracts for the year
respectively.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest
in the Group’s five largest suppliers or customers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Shi Feng (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Wong Lui

Non-executive Director:
Ms. Chan Heung Ling (Chairlady)
Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Xie Gang
Mr. Lee Man To
Ms. Zhang Juan

In accordance with Bye-laws 84(1) and 84(2) of the
Company, Ms. Chan Heung Ling (“Ms. Chan”) and Ms.
Zhang Juan will retire from office as non-executive Director
and independent non-executive Director by rotation and
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

RITREMER

AEBZRITAEMERFBHRTIERE N
5F25

FEEFRHER
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The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, Mr. Xie Gang, Mr. Lee Man To
and Ms. Zhang Juan an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
As at the date of this report, the Company considers
that all the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Ms. Chan, Mr. Shi Feng and Mr. Wong Lui has
a service contract with the Company for a term of three
years and each of these service contracts is subject to
termination by either party giving not less than six months’
written notice.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company
for an initial term of one year and thereafter shall continue
year to year subject to termination by either party giving
not less than one month’s notice.

Apart from the foregoing, no Director proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ emoluments are subject to the
recommendations of the remuneration committee and the
Board's approval. The emoluments are determined by the
Board with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities
and performance and the results of the Group.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES

As at 31 March 2014, the interests or short positions
of the Directors and chief executives in the Shares or
underlying Shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") as recorded
in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) were as follows:
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(i Long position in the ordinary shares of HK$0.01

() RALXFAEREEIIEBRTZEERZ

each in the Company L3}
Percentage
of issued
Number of share capital
Name of Director Shares held Nature of Interest e 1T
EEHA FrisR & B EREME BARzEDL
Ms. Chan 900,000,000 Interest of controlled 75%

(Note) corporation

Rt

Note: These shares are held by Pan Hong Property as
beneficial owner. Pan Hong Property is owned as
to 56.22% by Extra Good Enterprises Ltd. (“Extra
Good"), which is in turn owned as to 52% by Mr.
Wong Lam Ping (“Mr. Wong"), the spouse of Ms.
Chan, and 48% by Ms. Chan.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, none of
the Directors or chief executives had any interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

(i) Long positions in the shares of associated
corporations

(BfEE) X EEE S

MizE : ZEROABANBHEERERES AR
A ° Extra Good Enterprises Ltd. ([ Extra
Good]) # B N # 1 EE56.22 % & -
R+ 2 BRBEMKEE (ERE])
N PR+ 45 B#E B Extra GoodZ52% K&
48% M °

B EXFIIEEEIN R_E—NF=ZA=+—
H BMESESLTETHRAERAARSET
A EE (T& R GEHRBEEG) EXV
EMZ&(&@@&1$%@ZEH%@WM

B ARE (BEH LB EIEM) F3521&17F
EZWEﬁW A RBITME AN R M

(i) REBEZIERDZFR

Number, class and
percentage of

Name of shares in associated
associated Capacity/ corporation
Name of Director corporation nature of interest GBI EENRMEA -
B M EE 2B Bip, REmtE HRRBEDH
Mr. Shi Feng Pan Hong Property  Beneficial owner 473,900 ordinary shares (0.09%)
of Pan Hong Property

AEEE D E EnEBA 473,900 1,78 Hh 2= 3 A% (0.09%)

Ms. Chan Pan Hong Property ~ Beneficial owner 323,395,494 ordinary shares
(63.12%) of Pan Hong Property
(Note)

R+ N E BEmAA 323,395,494/ 1 E EIRAR
(63.12%) (FHf3E)

Note: Ms. Chan is interested in 323,395,494 ordinary BRYEE : BR & & % 323,395,494 N B i &=
shares (approximately 63.12% of the entire issued TRR o Ex ((E2BERTRAD
share capital) of Pan Hong Property, which comprises: 63.12%) r EHRBE: (MWEFHNE
(1) 14,443,300 ordinary shares of Pan Hong Property B 214,443,3000% & 3@ % (2)H B2
held by her; (2) 20,952,194 ordinary shares of Pan 18 & &+ AN B H = 220,952,194
Hong Property, held by her spouse, Mr. Wong, which fREmEl BRZETRIERNETHEAE
she is deemed to be interested; and (3) 288,000,000 = + &(3) Extra GoodiF B Z L& ih &
ordinary shares of Pan Hong Property held by Extra 288,000,000/% E /A% - BRLZT1RIERE
Good, which she is deemed to be interested. FRIE A HE RS o
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Save as disclosed above, as at the Latest Practicable Date,
none of the Directors or the chief executive of the Company
had or was deemed to have any interests or short positions in
the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which were required (i) to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) which were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (iii) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies contained in the Listing Rules.

INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2014, insofar as is known to the Directors
or chief executive of our Company, the following
persons (not being a Director or chief executive of our
Company), had an interest or short position in the Shares
or underlying Shares which fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO were as follows:

Long position in the ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
in the Company

R EXAIEEN  RERERATHS &
ERARRBEBTHRABMERANQRHEE
AR EE (E& R (EHFLBERL) EXV
#8) BBty - MHEBAR AEH T HEB HAWAR S
HEAORE (RS MGG EXVIBET R E
870 B & AN 1% A) B Bt 52 P 2 A AT A 2 SOK
B (BREERE(EFEBEMRD) 2&FKE
XWEERGIERER 2 FIXR) + R(RIE
(BHERBAEGRD) E352GARAZIEEE
O 2 R SORR ¢ S(iiRIE_ AR RIFT
HETRARESTETIEFRZNRETRIZAM
SARB MR LSRR -

FTERRzES

RZZE-—NE=ZA=+—B BEFEXALQF
TETBRABMA TIAL (LFEFHA
RAEZBITRAR) R RBEROTHES
ARECGEF R ERD) EXVEE2NM37
ZIGEXARRBRE 2 ERSORBID

REQBDEREEIOIBIZEBRZER

Percentage
of issued
Number of share capital
Name of Shareholder Shares held Nature of Interest BT
REERE RGO EE ERME BAEZzEDH
Pan Hong Property 900,000,000 Beneficial owner 75%
B BithH A
Extra Good 900,000,000 Interest of controlled 75%
(Note) corporation
(B 3E) SYEHEE S
Mr. Wong 900,000,000 Interest of controlled 75%
(Note) corporation
Pt (B 3E) S EE S

Note:  Pan Hong Property is owned as to 56.22% by Extra Good,
which is in turn owned as to 52% by Mr. Wong, the spouse
of Ms. Chan, and 48% by Ms. Chan.

Bf5E : Extra GoodRFA N BHIES6.22%Ea + MR
+ 2 B BE £ KRB =5 Bl AExtra Good
52% N A48%HE ©
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Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of
any other person who had an interest or short position
in the Shares or underlying Shares as at 31 March 2014,
which would fall to be disclosed under Division 2 and 3 of
part XV of the SFO, were recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions as disclosed in note 32(a)
to the financial statements also fell under the definition
of "continuing connected transaction” in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. As the annual amount involved
in this continuing connected transaction is less than
HK$1,000,000, such continuing connected transaction will
qualify as de minimis transaction under Rule 14A.33(3) of
the Listing Rules, that is exempt from the reporting, annual
review, announcement and independent Shareholders’
approval requirements.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s
business to which the Company, or its subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director has a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contacts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, none of
the Directors are considered to have interests in a business
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group, as defined by
the Listing Rules.

NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKING

On 30 June 2011, the Company and Pan Hong Property
entered into a non-compete undertaking (the “Non-
compete Undertaking”) to avoid any potential
competitions between the business of the Company
and Pan Hong Property after the spin-off and separate
listing of the Company. Relevant undertakings between
the Company and Pan Hong Property was disclosed
in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders” of the Prospectus.

B EXFTIRBEEN  EEWIAME R —
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EMRAIE14AZBNEAE REEREKFR
5 BRGNP EBTHE FEEZ - M
MERBIIREIEZIRT °

EXREN
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BRI 4977 ©
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The Company has received a confirmation from Pan
Hong Property that it has complied with the terms of the
Non-compete Undertaking for the year ended 31 March
2014. The independent non-executive Directors have also
reviewed the said confirmation and are of the view that
Pan Hong Property has complied with the terms of the
Non-compete Undertaking.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company’s business to which the Company are set out in
the Corporate Governance Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors,
the Board confirms that the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float as required by the Listing Rules as at
the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual
report.

DONATION
During the year, the Group made charitable donations
amounting to approximately RMB0.8 million (2013: nil).

AUDITOR

BDO Limited retire and a resolution for the re-appointment
as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. There has been no
change in the auditor of the Company since the listing
of the shares of the Company on the main board of the
Stock Exchange.

By order of the Board

Shi Feng
Deputy Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 June 2014
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group recognises that good corporate governance
establishes and maintains a legal and ethical environment,
which is essential for preserving and enhancing the
interests of all stakeholders. The Company has complied
with the code provisions in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Code Provision”) as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
during the year ended 31 March 2014.

(A)

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is primarily responsible for overseeing
and supervising the management of the business
affairs and the overall performance of the Group.
The Board sets the Group’s values and standards
and ensure that the requisite financial and human
resources support are in place for the Group
to achieve its objectives. Currently, the Board
comprises six Directors, including two executive
Directors, Mr. Shi Feng and Mr. Wong Lui, a non-
executive Director Ms. Chan Heung Ling and
three independent non-executive Directors, Mr.
Xie Gang, Mr. Lee Man To and Ms. Zhang Juan.
Mr. Wong Lui is the son of Ms. Chan Heung Ling.
Save as disclosed above, there is no family or other
material relationship among members of the Board.
Biographical details of the Directors are out on
pages 39 to 41 of the annual report.

A}
I

BT EERERERTR
AEBEHERRTFZERERRERY RGFAR
FEERE  EHRENRAZEBRESEHAA
Z*E/\E?‘%EK ARARBE-T—MF=
H T-BHLEFECDETERHEARIMAR
AES EmRA ([ EWRA ) Mg+ mbE
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(A) EFg
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All executive Directors and non-executive Director
entered into service contracts with the Company
for a specific term of three years. Under the Bye-
Laws of the Company, the Board is empowered
to appoint any person as a Director to fill a
causal vacancy on or as an additional Director.
Where vacancies exist, the Board shall carry out
selection process by making reference to the
skills, experience, qualification, integrity and time
commitments of the proposed candidates.

In compliance with Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed three independent
non-executive Directors, one of whom has
appropriate professional qualifications in accounting
and financial management. All independent
non-executive Directors have confirmed their
independence of the Company and the Company
considers them to be independent in accordance
with the guidelines for assessing independence
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. All
independent non-executive Directors have entered
into letters of appointment with the Company for a
specific term of one year. One third of the Directors
are subject to retirement from office by rotation and
re-election at each annual general meeting provided
that every Director shall be subject to rotation at
least once every three years in accordance with the
Bye-Laws of the Company.

All Directors, including independent non-executive
Directors, have given sufficient time and effort to
the affairs of the Group. Independent non-executive
Directors have provided the Board with their
diversified expertise, experience and professional
advice. The Board believes that the ratio between
executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors is reasonable and adequate to provide
sufficient checks and balances that safeguard
the interests of Shareholders and the Group. The
Board also believes that the views and participation
of the independent non-executive Directors in
the Board and committee meetings provides
independent judgment on the issues relating to
strategy, performance, conflict of interest and
management process to ensure that the interests of
all Shareholders are considered and safeguarded.

ERTEERIENTEFNRAAATIEE
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All Directors have full and timely access to all
relevant information in relation to the Group’s
businesses and affairs as well as unrestricted access
to the advice and services of the company secretary,
who is responsible for providing Directors with
Board papers, and related materials. The Directors
may seek independent professional advice at the
Company'’s expenses in carrying out their duties and
responsibilities.

The Company has subscribed appropriate and
sufficient insurance coverage on Directors’ liabilities
in respect of legal actions taken against Directors
arising out of corporate activities.

The Directors are committed to complying with
the code provision A.6.5 of the Code Provisions.
All Directors have participated in continuous
professional development and provided a record of
training they received for the year ended 31 March
2014 to the Company.

The individual training record of each Director
received for the year ended 31 March 2014 is set
out below:

NRAMEBBERESFRHEESTENXMNR
EBEME MEEFET2AEMKEE
BEAREREXGREHERNAERRBRE
£ AHEERSNBER N R RRMWE
MER KRS - KRB AEESENET
BEMBERIBARREIEXERN
BEER -

ARAEREFERTARASZFHHER
MEXEZRFARDEFNEEBERBELR
TERARE

# % 8 57 °F A 16 X A 6506 F B
X REE-T-WMF=/=+—8
LFE - 2EEEMELABETLEY
B BEEADAREERES I
sty -

RBEE-_ZT-—NF=ZA=1+—HL*F
B BEFRXBIZEALEES L0

Briefings and updates on
the business, operations and
corporate governance matters

BREYK ¢ERGCEXERSTEZ

Name of Director EEgR IGEEX
Executive Directors WITES
Mr. Shi Feng (Deputy Chairman and b BEE (BIFEF

Chief Executive Officer) BEEHNTE) 4
Mr. Wong Lui pas v
Non-executive Director FEHITES
Ms. Chan Heung Ling (Chairlady) PRI 2+ (E/E) 4
Independent Non-executive Directors B IEMITES
Mr. Xie Gang i v
Mr. Lee Man To FHEEE 4
Ms. Zhang Juan kOBt 4
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(B)

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Board
held six meetings. At these board meetings,
Directors discussed and exchanged their views on
significant issues and general operations of the
Group, reviewed the financial performance and
reviewed and approved the quarterly, interim and
final results.

At least 14 days notice prior to the date of meeting
is given to all Directors and an agenda together
with board papers are sent to all Directors no less
than three days before the date of meeting. All
Directors are given opportunity to include in the
agenda any other matter that they would like
to discuss in the meeting. Regarding the board
committee meeting, reasonable prior notice is given
to all committee members.

The company secretary assists the Chairman of the
Board in preparation of the agenda for the board
meeting and board committee meeting. He also
prepares and keeps detailed minutes of each board
meeting and board committee meeting. Within
a reasonable time after each meeting, the draft
minutes are circulated to all Directors or committee
members for comment and the final and approved
version of minutes is sent to all Directors and
committee members for their record. The company
secretary has duly complied with the relevant
professional training requirement under Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules.

CHAIRLADY AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Ms. Chan Heung Ling is the Chairlady of the Board
and Mr. Shi Feng is the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company. The division of responsibilities
between the Chairlady and the Chief Executive
Officer are clearly divided to ensure a balance of
power and authority.

Ms. Chan Heung Ling, being the Chairlady, is
responsible for formulating the Company’s overall
strategies and policies, providing leadership to the
Board and ensuring the Board functions effectively.
She would ensure complete, reliable and timely
information being provided to the Directors and
encourage Directors to actively participate in the
Board to act in the best interest of the Company.

(B)
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(D)

(E)

Mr. Shi Feng, being the Chief Executive Officer, is
responsible for the daily operations of the Company,
execution of business policies, strategies, objectives
and plans as formulated and adopted by the Board
and leading the management of the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of the Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct
for securities transactions by the Directors. After
having made specific enquiries with all Directors, all
Directors confirmed that they have complied with
the required standards set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 March 2014.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
for the financial year ended 31 March 2014, which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Company and the Group at 31 March 2014 and
of the Group’s results and cash flows for the year
then ended and are properly prepared on going
concern basis in accordance with the applicable
statutory requirements and accounting standards.

The external auditor of the Group have also stated
their reporting responsibility in the auditor’s report
of the consolidated financial statements.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three board committees,
namely audit committee, remuneration committee
and nomination committee, to oversee particular
aspects of the Company’s affairs. The Board
committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties.

The written terms of reference for each committee
were adopted by the Board. The terms of reference
are in line with the Listing Rules and they are
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.
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(F)

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules,
an audit committee was established on 4 July 2011
with written terms of reference in accordance
with the Corporate Governance Code as set out
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The audit
committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Lee Man To (the
chairman), Mr. Xie Gang and Ms. Zhang Juan.
The audit committee reports to the Board and is
delegated by the Board to assess matters related
to the financial statements. Under its terms of
reference, the audit committee is required to
perform, amongst others, the following duties:

o monitoring whether the Group's
management has, in the performance of
its duties, infringed any policies set by the
Board or any applicable laws, regulation and
code and report to the Board;

o reviewing the Group’s internal control
procedures and system;

o making recommendations to the Board for
the improvement of the Group’s internal
control procedures and system;

o making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the external auditor, and to
approve and review the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor
and any questions of its resignation or
dismissal; and

o monitoring the integrity of accounts,
financial statements, interim reports and
annual reports.
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(G)

The audit committee held four meetings during
the year and all minutes were kept by the
company secretary. The committee has reviewed
the accounting policies and practices adopted by
the Group and the quarterly and interim results
of the Group. The committee reported that there
was no material uncertainty that cast doubt on the
Company’s going concern ability.

Auditor's remuneration

The total fees paid/payable in relation to the audit
service provided by BDO Limited, Certified Public
Accountants, Hong Kong, the external auditor
of the Company, for the year ended 31 March
2014 amounted to HK$830,000. The auditor also
provided other non-audit services mainly acted as
reporting accountant in relation to the Company’s
circular of a major transaction. The fees for these
services were HK$51,000.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee was established with
written terms of reference in accordance with
the Code Provision as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules. The main responsibilities of the
remuneration committee include but not limited
to formulate remuneration policy for the approval
of the Board, and make recommendations to
the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
for the remuneration of all Directors and senior
management. The remuneration committee
comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Xie Gang (the chairman), Mr.
Lee Man To and Ms. Zhang Juan, non-executive
Director Ms. Chan Heung Ling and one executive
Director Mr. Shi Feng.

Two remuneration committee meetings were held
during the year to review the remuneration policies
and determine the annual bonus of the Directors
and senior executives.
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(H) NOMINATION COMMITTEE

)

The major duties of the nomination committee are
to give advice to the Board on the appointment/re-
appointment of Directors, to review the structure,
number of members and composition of the Board,
and to assess the independence of independent
non-executive Directors.

The nomination committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Xie Gang (the chairman), Mr. Lee Man To and Ms.
Zhang Juan, and one executive Director Mr. Wong
Lui.

One meeting was held during the year, all
committee members had attended the meeting.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS
AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each Director at the
Board meetings, board committee meetings and the
general meeting of the Company held during the
year ended 31 March 2014 is set out in the table
below:

(H REBZ8E
REZEENIERERMEZE B
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Attendance/Number of Meetings

HEEERY / ERETRE

Annual

Audit  Remuneration Nomination General
Name of Director Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
£33 Bz ENEEE FHzEg REZEE RRBEFAR®
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Shi Feng B OBRE 6/6 22 11
Mr. Wong Lui T Bik 6/6 1/1 0/1
Non-executive Director FgTES
Ms. Chan Heung Ling BEmIs 3+ 5/6 12 n
Independent BUKHITES

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Xie Gang B RxE 6/6 414 22 11 11
Mr. Lee Man To TEELLE 6/6 44 2 1n 17
Ms. Zhang Juan & BRT 5/6 3/4 112 1n 1n
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(K)

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for
maintaining a sound system of internal control
framework. The controls are to provide reasonable
assurance to safeguard Shareholders investments
and the Group’s assets. The system of internal
controls is designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives. It can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss and the review of the Group’s internal control
systems should be a concerted and continuing
process.

The Group’s control environment provides the
foundation upon which all other components of
internal controls are built upon. It provides discipline
and structure, setting the tone of the organisation
and influencing the control consciousness of its
staff. A weak control environment foundation
hampers the effectiveness of even the best designed
internal control procedure.

The external auditor has, during the course of
audit, considered the internal control relevant to the
Group's preparation of the consolidated financial
statements within the scope of their audit. The
Board, through the audit committee, had reviewed
the effectiveness of the internal control system
of the Group, and also reviewed adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of
the Company's accounting and financial reporting
function, and their training programmes and
budget. The Board believes that the existing internal
control system is adequate and effective.

SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

The Group is committed to regular and proactive
communication with its Shareholders. The Company
has adopted a policy of disclosing clear, adequate
and relevant information to Shareholders in a
timely manner through various channels. Annual
and interim reports are printed and sent to all
Shareholders by post as requested. The Company
has complied with provisions of the Listing Rules by
posting announcements, notices, quarterly reports,
interim reports, annual reports and Shareholders’
circulars on the website of the Stock Exchange and
the Company (http://www.sinoharbour.com.hk).
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Shareholders are encouraged to attend Annual
General Meetings and Special General Meetings.
In the general meeting, there is a briefing on the
business of the Company by the Chairman of the
Board and a question and answer session as well
as a discussion with Shareholders on the long-term
development strategy of the Company.

Notice of annual general meeting is delivered to all
Shareholders at least 20 clear business days prior to
the date of the meeting, setting out details of each
proposed resolution, voting procedures (including
procedures for demanding and conducting a poll)
and other relevant information. As at the beginning
of the meeting, the procedures for demanding and
conducting a poll will be explained by the Chairman
of the Board. Vote results are released by way of
publication of an announcement.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

How Shareholders can convene a Special
General Meeting

According to Bye-law 58 of the Company’'s Bye-
laws, Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit
of the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
have the right to require a special general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition.

The requisition shall be in writing addressed to the
Board or the company secretary and deposited
at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong at Room 1215, Tower B, Hunghom
Commercial Centre, 37 — 39 Ma Tau Wai Road,
Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance
with section 74(3) of the Companies Act of
Bermuda.
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Procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

Shareholders should direct their questions about
their shareholdings to the Company’s share registrar
in Hong Kong, the contact details of which are set
out as follows:

Tricor Investor Services Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong

Telephone 2980 1333

Facsimile 2810 8185

Shareholders, potential investors and the media
may at any time make a request for the Company’s
information to the extent such information is
publicly available and make enquiries to the
Company through the following means:

By telephone 2363 1300

Room 1215, Tower B,
Hunghom Commercial Centre,
37-39 Ma Tau Wai Road,
Hunghom, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

By post

By email ir@sinoharbour.com.hk
The procedures for making proposals at
general meetings

To put forward proposals at a general meeting,
Shareholders should submit a written notice of
those proposals with detailed contact information
to the company secretary at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong at Room
1215, Tower B, Hunghom Commercial Centre,
37 - 39 Ma Tau Wai Road, Hunghom, Kowloon,
Hong Kong. The request will be verified within the
Company'’s share registrar in Hong Kong and upon
their confirmation that the request is proper and in
order, the company secretary will ask the Board to
include the resolution in the agenda for the general
meeting.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There were no significant changes in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the year ended 31
March 2014.

(M)

UEESRHEACERF

RIS iR AEA R - ErRARQ T
Z2EBRHBEERRIEL  HE4KF
BESNNT -

BEFESELARAA
EAEFEAERISIFEMAL221E

B 2980 1333
BE : 28108185

PR BERE E KRR R AT ) B
EREBAURARAESZARAER X
AlEE T A AARRRER

2363 1300

i
e
&

[

B BB NEE
AR IS
37-395%
AR LSl
BEE1215%

JEx!
o

8 48 T

RBRAELREBRZER

ir@sinoharbour.com.hk

MABRERE FIREFR  WERARA
AMNEERZSHRRZ2EMBANERGF
MBS SR It AR RRIREBZE
DA (it AR B NEAMEEE
7837-395% AL B 7 % R OBREE1215%F) o
ERERBERARAZEERHBEE
TEZE THFHREERZERARE
% REEBRESTIREGEBR
FRMABRERASZENR -

ABERNMH

ApRBE-_FT-—WF=A=+—HIt
FEZABEREXFLREANES -



Sino Harbour Property Group Limited J&&EitESBE AR AR Annual Report 2013/2014 F3;

Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management

ESENGREERcBEFE

39

CHAIRLADY AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Chan Heung Ling (FR"9%%), aged 55, is one of the founders
of the Group and became the Chairlady of the Company
and non-executive Director on 4 July 2011. Ms. Chan
is mainly responsible for the formulation of the overall
strategy of the Group. Ms. Chan has engaged in property
development since 1990s and has experience in this area
for over 18 years. She participated in the property business
of Pan Hong Property and has been the deputy chairlady
and an executive director of Pan Hong Property from
January 2006 to June 2011. Ms. Chan is the spouse of Mr.
Wong Lam Ping (“Mr. Wong"), the controlling shareholder
(as defined in the Listing Rules), and is the mother of Mr.
Wong Lui, one of the executive Directors.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Shi Feng (F#), aged 56, became the deputy chairman,
the chief executive officer of the Company and an
executive Director on 4 July 2011. Mr. Shi is responsible
for the management of project plans, quality control,
contractors, and the management of the Group’s
subsidiaries. He joined Pan Hong Property in September
2002 and was an executive director of Pan Hong Property
from January 2006 to June 2011.

He was certified as an engineer by the Ministry of Light
Industry of the PRC (2 A R FIEIEE T %3f) in 1987.

Mr. Shi graduated with a bachelor's degree in civil and
industrial construction from Hunan University in December
1981.

Prior to joining Pan Hong Property, Mr. Shi was an assistant
civil engineer at the construction technology department
of Twenty Third Metallurgy Construction Company under
the Ministry of Metallurgy (8 ® LHE#E -+ =/a2EH

NE GEIEAMIER)) from 1982 to 1983. He served as an
engineer at the Changsha Design Institute of the Ministry
of Light Industry (8 T 2 & &% & 5tEt) from 1983 to
1992, where he specialised in the structural design of
buildings. Mr. Shi subsequently joined Huilong (Group) Ltd.
of Huizhou City, Guangdong Province (B & =M =EE
EEABRAR]) from 1992 to 1999 as the deputy general
manager, responsible for real estate development and
technical construction management. Between 1999 and
2002, he was the general manager of 3A Electronics Co.,
Ltd. in Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province (AT T&MMN =&
FHMRAF) the PRC.
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Mr. Shi is now a member of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference of Donghu District of Nanchang
City, Jiangxi Province, the PRC. He is also the standing
director of the Second Nanchang Overseas Chinese
Entrepreneurs Association.

Wong Lui (3£%), aged 31, became an executive Director
of the Company on 4 July 2011. Mr. Wong Lui is mainly
responsible for the operational management and
development of the projects of Nanchang Honggu Kaixuan
(FE#IA8\5E) and Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting Yuan (ME/NZE
#:FZFt). He joined Pan Hong Property in October 2007 as
the assistant to the chairman of Pan Hong Property in the
formulation of business strategy and management of Pan
Hong Property. He was appointed as the deputy project
manager and the deputy general manager of Jiangxi
Asia City Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (“Jiangxi
Asia City”, LA M FHERZEARAR]), one of the
Group’s subsidiaries, in 2008 and was mainly responsible
for management of construction works. He was also
appointed as the general manager of Fuzhou Pan Hong
Kai Xuan Property Development Co., Ltd. (“Fuzhou Pan
Hong", HEMNABFHEFM B A F]), another subsidiary
of the Group, in 2009 and was mainly responsible
for the formulation of business strategy and the daily
management of Fuzhou Pan Hong.

Mr. Wong Lui is now a standing committee member of
Jiangxi Federation of Industry and Commerce.

Mr. Wong Lui is the son of Ms. Chan, the Chairlady, and
Mr. Wong, the controlling shareholder (as defined in the
Listing Rules).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Xie Gang (M), aged 49, became an independent non-
executive Director on 4 July 2011. Mr. Xie was the head
representative of AXA Guangzhou representative office
from 1995 to 2002, during which he was responsible for
the operation of the representative office and matters
relating to establishing branch companies for AXA
group. From 2003 to 2008, he was the manager of AXA-
Minmetals Assurance Co., Ltd., Guangdong Branch and
was responsible for government relations, establishing
new companies, recruitment, franchise development, risk
management, marketing and sales etc. Mr. Xie graduated
from Xiamen University with a bachelor’s degree in
computer science in July 1988.
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Lee Man To (Z80H), aged 41, became an independent
non-executive Director on 4 July 2011. Mr. Lee is an
executive director, the financial controller, qualified
accountant and company secretary of Combest Holdings
Limited (formerly known as Goldmond Holdings Limited),
a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 8190). Mr. Lee has over 16
years of experience in auditing, accounting and finance
including acting as accountant, compliance officer and
financial manager for various private companies. He
served in the group finance department of Rosedale Hotel
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Wing On Travel
(Holdings) Limited), a company listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1189), from 2007 to
2008. Mr. Lee graduated in the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with a bachelor’s degree in accountancy in 1995.
Mr. Lee is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

Zhang Juan (3R 18), aged 30, became an independent
non-executive Director on 4 July 2011. She has been
the legal representative of Shanghai Jinfu Trading
Company Limited (F/&8388mE AR A7) since 2009,
which is principally engaged in the business of retail
of jewellery and artworks and accessories trading. Ms.
Zhang is responsible for product design and product
manufacturing and sales process. She has also been the
legal representative and a director of Shanghai Yunteng
Investment Management Limited (F /8 E B & & & 12
B BR A R)) since 2010, which is principally engaged in
the business of financial investment management and
consultation. In her position as legal representative,
Ms. Zhang is in charge of the said company’s financial
regulatory matters, budget analysis, as well as overseeing
the said company’s internal controls. Ms. Zhang graduated
from Shanghai Ocean University (_E/&/8 % K2, formerly
known as Shanghai Fisheries University (_E/&7KEKE),
with a bachelor’s degree in finance in 2005.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Li Ming Yuan (Z8t), aged 51, is the Group’s director
of property management. He joined Pan Hong Property in
2004 as deputy general manager of Jiangxi Asia City. He
remained in this position until 2007 and was afterwards
appointed as the deputy general manager of Jiangxi
Ganghong Investment Co. Ltd. (TFEEREEZBRAF]) in
the same year. He is re-designated as Assistant to General
Manager of Nanchang Dingxun Co. Ltd. (FERAEXE
BR/AR]) since January 2014.

Mr. Li was educated at Jiangxi Broadcasting and Television
University (T 74 & 1% £ 1% K 2), where he graduated in
1989 majoring in Industrial and Civil Construction. From
1989 to 1996, he served as a construction worker, deputy
head of the production department and the director of
production technology department at Nanchang City
Municipal Engineering Development Co., Ltd. (&M MK
TERIE AR A R]). Mr. Li was certified as an engineer in
1997.

Gao Lan (5/&), aged 48, is the Group’s director of marketing.
Ms. Gao joined Pan Hong Property in June 2010 as the
director of marketing and administration (Southern Region)
of Pan Hong Property. She is re-designated as the Group’s
director of marketing since November 2013 in order to
concentrate on the Group’s marketing affairs.

Ms. Gao graduated from Jiangxi Industrial University (/T
AT EKE), the predecessor of Nanchang University (/8
ERE), in 1987, with a bachelor’s degree majoring in
industrial and civil construction. She was certified as an
engineer in 1994 and qualified as class 2 constructor in
2003.

Ms. Gao has extensive experience in the construction
and real estate development industry. She worked at
the technology division of the real estate development
department of Nanchang City Municipal Engineering
Development Co., Ltd. AE T MR IIERZEER R F)
from 1987 to 1993. She joined Hainan Huan Li (Real
Estate) Group (B8R (MbE) H£E) in 1993, acting as
the director of the chief executive officer's office, and as
the deputy general manager of Hainan Huan Li Real Estate
Development Co. Ltd. (8RR EHERZE AR A 7]). Ms.
Gao was the deputy general manager of Shanghai Jing Ja
Immovable Investment Consultant Co., Ltd. (_E/&&ETRE
EREZEHBMRAA]) from 2001 to 2006. From 2006 to
2009, she was the deputy general manager of Nanchang
Lan Di Consultant Co., Ltd. (7 & &t EERI AR A 7]). After
that, she joined Jiangxi Jinhai Property Co., Ltd. (T 78%/&
EEAMRETAR]) as the general manager from 2009 to
2010 before joining Pan Hong Property.
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Qiu Si Yuan (E82JF), aged 54, is the Group’s director of
planning and design. Mr. Qiu joined Pan Hong Property as
the director of planning and design in 2008.

Mr. Qiu has worked in construction industry for over 25
years, including China CEC Engineering Corporation (4
HTERDTIEAMR AR, formerly known as Changsha
Design Institute of the Ministry of Light Industry (88 T
EBRPFET), from 1982 to 1995. In 1995, Mr. Qiu
was assigned to work in Hunan Dacheng Design Co.,
Ltd. (HIF KBRS R FT AR A R]) as the deputy head
of the institute and chief architect until 2008. He joined
Pan Hong Property thereafter. Mr. Qiu was registered as a
certified class 2 architect in 1997.

Liu Lin Yu (8| B £), aged 62, is the Group’s director
of project expenditure. He joined Pan Hong Property in
2000, and had been responsible for costs management at
Pan Hong Property’s development projects. Since joining
Pan Hong Property, he had served as the deputy general
manager of Jieyang Hong Jun Real Estate Co. Ltd. (¥&8F5
ZIEEHEZR]) and on-site engineer of Huzhou Liyang
Housing and Landing Development Co., Ltd. (/M EF5
FEHERZEEMRAR]). He currently serves as the general
manager of Jiangxi Ganghong Investment Co. Ltd..

Mr. Liu was certified as an assistant engineer by Chaozhou
City Science and Technology Committee (%N 7&K
firZ= B &) in 1989. He graduated from an intermediate
level professional civil engineering correspondence learning
course (F&H + RFE TR H ¥ KXY from Sichuan
International Technical and Economic Management
Training Centre (78| E0RR £ iy B AC 7 & 12 2 /45 5l AR L)
in 1990. In 1991, he was qualified as a budget forecaster
and worked for Chaozhou City Qiao Dong Construction
Company (BN T &R ZEE A F]). The said qualification
was granted by Guangdong Province Construction
Standard Authority (R & ERIZ/ET REAR L)

Siu Ho Fai (B&/%RE), aged 33, is the financial controller
of the Group. He is also the company secretary and one
of the authorised representatives of the Company. Mr. Siu
has over ten years of experience in finance, auditing and
accounting. Mr. Siu joined the Group in March 2011. Prior
to joining the Group, he worked for international certified
public accountants firms for over seven years. Mr. Siu
obtained bachelor’s degree of business administration in
accountancy and law from City University of Hong Kong
in 2002. He is also a member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.
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To the shareholders of
Sino Harbour Property Group Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Sino Harbour Property Group Limited (“the Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on
pages 47 to 122, which comprise the consolidated and
company statements of financial position as at 31 March
2014, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

BERRHEREAERAARR
(REFZEAMA L BRA])

Az BEm (AT [P DEINER S
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FZA=Z+T—HAZEEMITMBEMREK - A
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BN EMBEEER

EERGAMBERRAREZEE

BERRERARARBEEEGMAGRMZ
FREVHHREENRFB QBRI Z KERE
RERSHBRE  USHREMBRRIELE
EMAFZRB REEESARREGEAY
BRIV E 2 NERZET - AEREGEA T
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Independent Auditor’s Report

R GTE e
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Independent Auditor’s Report
eV 73 CE S

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 31 March 2014 and of the
Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Cheung Or Ping

Practising Certificate Number P05412

Hong Kong, 24 June 2014

=R

ﬁﬁ%%'miﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%%

SRVNEEMAFHRE EAFk X
ER_T-—HFE=A=+T—BZ2FBMR "
P54 EWE@IEZEIJtif‘Zmﬂ&EEim
B UVERBRBFBRAGIZHERTHS
MREd o

BB GEESTMEKERAT
HESFAT

R R

R IR SRIEP05412

F8 —E-HFAA-TEA



Sino Harbour Property Group Limited ‘&8 EES£B AR AR Annual Report 2013/2014 3R 47

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

meEZHEWRER

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZ -2 — N ZA=+—HIFE

2014 2013
—E-mF =%
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
P aE ARBTR ARBTT
Revenue WA 6 476,339 559,918
Cost of sales HEMRA (324,157) (369,260)
Gross profit EF 152,182 190,658
Other income HAA 6 107,873 40,958
Selling and distribution expenses HELRDHEER (14,557) (13,272)
Administrative expenses EEBH (30,655) (20,164)
Operating profit R 214,843 198,180
Finance costs BVE R 7 - -
Share of result of a joint venture JE(h—RAZ e 17 (480) -
Profit before income tax BR AT B B AT SR 8 214,363 198,180
Income tax expense FriEmiEY 9 (73,400) (72,960)
Profit for the year = 355 F 140,963 125,220
Other comprehensive income HE#h2mhss (HKRBE)
(net of tax)
Item that may be reclassified HESTEEFIEE
subsequently to profit or loss BRYER
Exchange differences on translation of BN ER R RE
financial statements of foreign 0E M 2%
operations ZERER (1,655) (1,296)
Other comprehensive income FREMZEKE
for the year (1,655) (1,296)
Total comprehensive income FREHEKEHEE
for the year 139,308 123,924
Profit/(Loss) for the year DTFATELEER
attributable to: RF(EE)
Owners of the Company RATIER A 10 143,768 126,444
Non-controlling interests IEIE A 25 (2,805) (1,224)
140,963 125,220
Total comprehensive income DTATEESEZEKSE
attributable to: g
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIE 2PN 142,113 125,148
Non-controlling interests e R RS (2,805) (1,224)
139,308 123,924
Earnings per share for profit FERARDTEEAES
attributable to the owners of BHTEREF

the Company during the year

(in RMB cents) (AR#2)

- Basic and diluted — ERKLEE 12 11.98 10.54
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

SE BB T

As at 31 March 2014 R=—Z—E=A=+—H

2014 2013
—E-mF —T-=F
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
BisE AR¥T ARET T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERER
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - HE KRB 14 11,674 2,771
Investment properties KEYE 15 331,348 111,625
Interest in a joint venture H—FRELEIES 17 182,437 174,149
Pledged deposits EEFER 22 330,000 230,000
Deferred tax assets RIETHIAE E 26 15,012 -
870,471 518,545
Current assets FEEE
Properties held under development FEPYE 18 1,154,456 1,066,044
Properties held for sale FEWE 19 414,172 311,164
Accounts receivable FEUGBE =X 20 669 12
Prepayments and other receivables TR I8 K Ho A fE W kIR 21 517,234 152,826
Pledged deposits [REEPLES 22 233,772 31,724
Cash and bank balances Be MIRITRES 22 67,768 240,917
2,388,071 1,802,687
Current liabilities REAE
Accounts payable FERTBR TR 23 23,995 29,309
Accruals, receipts in advance and JEETFIE  TEWMFIE N
other payables HAib e 58 23 653,219 430,572
Provision for tax THIBBHE 106,047 134,809
Bank and other loans RITREME K 25 375,173 99,000
1,158,434 693,690
Net current assets RBEEZE 1,229,637 1,108,997
Total assets less current liabilities BEERABERE 2,100,108 1,627,542
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank and other loans RITREME R 25 748,500 434,500
Deferred tax liabilities ELERIEAE 26 45,066 1,978
793,566 436,478
Net assets EESE 1,306,542 1,191,064
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to FARERAELER
the Company’s owners
Share capital i 27 9,931 9,931
Reserves B 28 1,085,947 943,834
Proposed final dividend BORARHR B 11 = 38,741
1,095,878 992,506
Non-controlling interests FERER 210,664 198,558
Total equity ERAE 1,306,542 1,191,064
Chan Heung Ling Shi Feng
3R M £ Alg
Director Director

EFE EFE
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Statement of Financial Position

Br IR R R

As at 31 March 2014 R=—Z—WE=A=+—H

2014 2013
—E-NF —E-=F
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
B sE ARET R AREFTT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERER
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries B R ER 16 285,452 285,452
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments and other receivables TETRIA R H At FE UK IR 21 292 159
Amounts due from subsidiaries DI ENGIE R 24 269,219 309,601
Cash and bank balances He MIR1TES 22 92 69
269,603 309,829
Current liabilities nEaE
Accruals and other payables JE 5T F00E K H B A BB 23 64 64
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERN B AR I8 24 8,083 8,083
8,147 8,147
Net current assets REEEZTE 261,456 301,682
Total assets less current liabilities/ BEERRBERE
Net assets EERE 546,908 587,134
EQUTIY e
Equity attributable to FARERAELER
the Company’s owners
Share capital N 27 9,931 9,931
Reserves i 28 536,977 538,462
Proposed final dividend BIRAERE 11 - 38,741
Total equity EREE 546,908 587,134
Chan Heung Ling Shi Feng
PR N 5 Alg
Director Director

EFE EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
meERB xR

For the year ended 31 March 2014 B2 —ZT—NF=ZF=+—HIFE

Equity attributable to the owners of the Company

RNAREARGRR
Proposed Non-
Share Share  Statutory  Exchange  Retained final controlling Total
capital  premium*  reserve*  reserve*  profits*  dividend Total interests equity
Bx RVEEr EEREr  EXGE  SEEN RIRRERS a FERER  BEAR
RMB'OO0  RMBO00  RMB'OO0  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ARETL ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR
(Note 28 ()  (Note 28 (i)

(PizE28.) (P28 i)

At 1 April 2012 W-E-—FmA-A 9,931 537,994 1872 8,383 269,178 29,264 896,622 199,782 1,096,404
Dividend paid (note 11) BRRE (fz1) - - - - - (29264 (29,264) - (29,264)
Transactions with owners BREAIXS - - - - - (29264)  (29.264) - (29264)
Profit/{loss) for the year FET/(518) - - - - 126,444 - 644 (1224) 125000
Exchange differences on translation of BN EREBER

financial statements of foreign operations ~ [E 3 £% - - - (1,29) - - (1,29) - (1,29)
Total comprehensive income for the year EALEWEE - - - (129) 126,444 - 125148 (1,224) 123,924
Transfer to statutory reserve BRZZEEE - - 10,705 - (10,709 - - - -
Final dividend proposed for FRRR KR E

the year (note 11) (Brz11) - - - - (38741) 38741 - - -
At 31 March 2013 and 1 April 2013 RZE-=5=A=1-H

k=E-ZEmA-H 9,931 537,9% 52,571 7087 346,176 38,741 992,506 198,558 1,191,064

Capital contribution by anon-controlling ~ —ZHERAFFEERIER

equity holder of subsidiary BEACLE - - - - - - - 1491 14,911
Dividend paid (note 11) BRRE (M11) - - - - - (38741)  (38,741) - (38741)
Transactions with owners BRENZRS - - - - - (38741 (38741) 14911 (23830)
Profit/{loss) for the year FhiEfl/(518) - - - - 143768 - 143768 (2805 140,963
Exchange differences on translation of BERNFBIRERL

financial statements of foreign operations B3 %% - - - (1,655) - - (1,655) - (1,655)
Total comprehensive income for the year — FAZENZ=EE - - - (1,655) 143,768 - 1403 (2,805 139,308
Transfer to statutory reserve BRZETEE - - 7,530 - (1530 - - - -
At 31 March 2014 RZE-mE=A=1-H 9,931 537,994 60,107 5432 482414 - 1,095,878 210,664 1,306,542
* The aggregate amount of these balances of * ZERGBEHE EARE,085,947,0000T (=

T — =% AR¥943,834,0007T) st ANz A B
RN R Z R -

RMB1,085,947,000 (2013: RMB943,834,000) in surplus is
included as reserves in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE—F

—OF=A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—E2-ImF —E=F
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
BisE ARBTR ARETTT
Cash flows from operating activities K& EZEHELRERE
Profit before income tax BR PS4 A A 214,363 198,180
Adjustments for: FNIITEE EL R
Interest income LB U A (6,404) (7,393)
Depreciation e 1,007 742
Share of result of a joint venture BlE—HKaghE
45 480 -
Loss on disposal/written off of HE /M mE -
property, plant and equipment B &k a1 - 6
Fair value adjustment on investment REMERERZE
properties, and properties held REMFER CREF
under development and properties MERGFENE
held for sale upon transfer to /N ?Tﬁuﬂﬁk
investment properties (93,529) (32,380)
Operating profit before working LEESEHE 2
capital changes R Em 115,917 159,155
(Increase)/decrease in properties RERMERFTED
held under development and X (gm),/ mo
properties held for sale (239,084) 49,683
(Increase)/decrease in accounts FEUER SR (3Em),/
receivable D (657) 565
Increase in prepayments and B A R E A U
other receivables RIEIEAN (386,362) (60,074)
(Decrease)/increase in accounts FERERZ CRLD),/
payable N (5,314) 11,553
Increase/(decrease) in accruals, JEETFUE « THWGIA
receipts in advance and other N EoAth & 5K IE
payables #m,/ Chd) 218,154 (51,425)
Cash (used in)/generated from meEe (FrA)/
operations sl & (297,346) 109,457
Interest received EYHE 2,769 1,085
Income tax paid ERAEH (74,086) (56,304)
Net cash (used in)/generated from EETE ()
operating activities Hrie B & #5E (368,663) 54,238
Cash flows from investing RETBMES
activities BeERE
Purchase of property, plant and BEVE BERRE
equipment (1,993) (191)
Proceed from disposal of property, H:'a’%#'/ﬂ% = &
plant and equipment R PTF R 98 49
Advance to a joint venture A—RASOLEBH (8,768) (79,000)
Increase in prepayments and TR RIE K H th FE U
other receivables FIBIE NN (4,505) -
Increase in pledged deposits [REEBEES 6Pl (302,048) (237,321)
Net cash used in investing activities REZEHFTHEEFEE (317,216) (316,463)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2014 B2 —ZT—NF=ZF=+—HIFE

2014 2013
—E-lmEF —E-=F
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
FioeE AR¥TR ARETTT
Cash flows from financing METHRELERSE
activities RE
Proceeds from new borrowings EEMSHRIE 860,173 458,500
Repayment of borrowings EBEEE (270,000) (5,000)
Dividend paid BERKRE (38,741) (29,264)
Capital contribution by FIERERZHE
non-controlling interests 14,911 -
Interest paid ERFE (51,971) (13,541)
Net cash generated from FE B TR FHE
financing activities 514,372 410,695
Net (decrease)/increase in cash REeRBEEEEY
and cash equivalents (H2),/ EmFeE (171,507) 148,470
Effect of foreign exchange rates, net X EFE (1,642) (316)
Cash and cash equivalents FOHeEREeEED
at beginning of the year 240,917 92,763
Cash and cash equivalents FEXRAERBRESEEY

at end of year 22 67,768 240,917
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZ -2 — N ZA=+—HIFE

1.  GENERAL INFORMATION

Sino Harbour Property Group Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in Bermuda on 5 January 2011 as
an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. The registered office
of the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and the principal place
of business of the Company is located at Room 1215,
Tower B, Hunghom Commercial Centre, 37-39 Ma Tau Wai
Road, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements. The directors of the Company
considered Pan Hong Property Group Limited (“Pan Hong
Property”), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Singapore Exchange Security Trading Limited, as the
ultimate holding company.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 47
to 122 have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which
collectively includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS") and Interpretations (“Int"”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the "HKICPA™). The consolidated financial statements also
include the applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2014 were approved for issue by the board of
directors (the “Board”) on 24 June 2014.

1. —REH

EZEEMEEBRAR AR ([ARF]) RZZT—
—F—ARBARBEERE-NN\—FRERE
BREAMKIAEREERETRR - AR
Al =&AL Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda & AR @2
FTEEEMBU N BB NERAMEEEE37-39
SRATRI P ZE A LBEE1215 o

ARAZEBRBRREZER - AN B
FIZEBEBHANGEVHRERWMEI6 - &
RAEERNEHWESEARAR (DB
El —RXRHINMREFZHMERLETZA
Al) REREER AT

HRFBAVTEZ1NRAZEEMBEHRRERES
AEAMAE ([BEEFMAE]) B zE
B BREER ([FEEMHHREER]) (BF
FRBERzBEAMBHRELER - FB S LR
(T&BEFEA] kg ([RE]) MR -
REMBRRNEBEFERANGIRBERS
RHMBRARERZ ETRA (T EMRAD 2
BERABERE

HE_Z-—NEF=A=1T—HLFEZHEaH
BHREAER - ZT-—NFAA-_tNHEEES
(TEFg)) AT -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE SRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2014 B2 —ZT—NF=ZF=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

In current year, the Group has applied, for the first time,

the following new and revised standards, amendments

and interpretations (the “new HKFRSs”) issued by the

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants which

are relevant to and effective for the Group’s financial

statements for the annual period beginning on 1 April

2013.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle

Amendments to Presentation of Items of Other
HKAS 1 (Revised) Comprehensive Income

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Fair Value Measurement

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRS 13

HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits

Except as explained below, the adoption of the new
HKFRSs has no material impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

HKAS 1 (Revised) (Amendments) — Presentation of
Items of Other Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised) require the Group to
separate items presented in other comprehensive income
into those that may be reclassified to profit and loss in
the future and those that may not. Tax on items of other
comprehensive income is allocated and disclosed on the
same basis.

The Group has adopted the amendments retrospectively
for the financial year ended 31 March 2014. Items of
other comprehensive income that may and may not be
reclassified to profit and loss in the future have been
presented separately in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. The comparative information has
been restated to comply with the amendments. As the
amendments affect presentation only, there are no effects
on the Group’s financial position or performance.

2. EFtE%

RAFE  AEBCERXKEAATHREES
MAgmEmEAEER _—T—=FNA—H
e < FEHIM 2 M iEmREESER 2 HR]
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CHEN) B FEBCE

EASHERIE R
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2 HMEEREZIER

BB REZER HHEEHEERSRARE
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BATREER NEEE
5135

EAGHERFE19% RBER/A
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BTN XGERRESN - AR BB IR E £

HARBE W BHRRLBEEATE -

EBETEREIR (BB BRTF) - 275
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P wRME

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZ -2 — N ZA=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (Continued)

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) - Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

HKFRS 7 is amended to introduce disclosures for all
recognised financial instruments that are set off under
HKAS 32 and those that are subject to an enforceable
master netting agreement or similar arrangement,
irrespective of whether they are set off under HKAS 32.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact on these
financial statements as the Group has not offset financial
instruments, nor has it entered into a master netting
agreement or a similar arrangement.

HKFRS 13 - Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 provides a single source of guidance on how
to measure fair value when it is required or permitted by
other standards. The standard applies to both financial and
non-financial items measured at fair value and introduces
a fair value measurement hierarchy. The definitions of the
three levels in this measurement hierarchy are generally
consistent with HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures.
HKFRS 13 defines fair value as the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date (i.e. an exit price). The standard
removes the requirement to use bid and ask prices for
financial assets and liabilities quoted in an active market.
Rather the price within the bid-ask spread that is most
representative of fair value in the circumstances should
be used. It also contains extensive disclosure requirements
to allow users of the financial statements to assess the
methods and inputs used in measuring fair values and
the effects of fair value measurements on the financial
statements. HKFRS 13 is applied prospectively.

HKFRS 13 did not materially affect any fair value
measurements of the Group’s assets and liabilities and
therefore has no effect on the Group’s financial position
and performance. The standard requires additional
disclosures about fair value measurements and these
are included in notes 15. Comparative disclosures have
not been presented in accordance with the transitional
provisions of the standard.

2. EIrE%E @)

ERMBREENETR (BITEX) - HE - K
HEMEERTHER

ERMBHRELRNETRCEER - BREEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE SRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2014 B2 —ZT—NF=ZF=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (Continued)
HKAS 19 (Revised) - Employee Benefits

The revised standard distinguishes between short-term
and long-term employee benefits based on the expected
date of settlement. The previous standard used the term
“due to be settled”. HKAS 19 (Revised) provides additional
guidance on the definition of termination benefits.
Benefits that are conditional on future service being
provided including those that increase if additional service
is provided are not termination benefits. The revised
standard requires that a liability for termination benefits is
recognised on the earlier of the date when the entity can
no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and the
date the entity recognises any related restructuring costs.

The Group has amended its accounting policies for
short-term employee benefits, however the adoption of
the revised standard has no effect on the Group’s financial
position or performance.

The following new and amended HKFRSs which are
potentially relevant to the Group’s financial statements,
have been issued, but are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Group:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKAS 32 (Amendments)  Presentation — Offsetting
Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities'

Recoverable Amount
Disclosures!

HKFRIC 21 Levies'

HKAS 36 (Amendments)

Improvements to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle?
Annual Improvements

2011-2013 Cycle?

Improvements to HKFRSs

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2014
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014
3 Effective for annual periods beginning, or transaction

occurring on or after 1 July 2014
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2. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (Continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

Under HKFRS 9, financial assets are classified into
financial assets measured at fair value or at amortised
cost depending on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial assets. Fair value gains
or losses will be recognised in profit or loss except for
those non-trade equity investments, which the entity will
have a choice to recognise the gains and losses in other
comprehensive income. HKFRS 9 carries forward the
recognition, classification and measurement requirements
for financial liabilities from HKAS 39, except for financial
liabilities that are designated at fair value through profit or
loss, where the amount of change in fair value attributable
to change in credit risk of that liability is recognised in
other comprehensive income unless that would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9
retains the requirements in HKAS 39 for derecognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities.

HKAS 32 (Amendments) - Presentation - Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The amendments clarify the offsetting requirements by
adding appliance guidance to HKAS 32 which clarifies
when an entity “currently has a legally enforceable right
to set off” and when a gross settlement mechanism is
considered equivalent to net settlement.

HKAS 36 (Amendments) — Recoverable Amount
Disclosures

The amendments limit the requirements to disclose the
recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit
("CGU") to those periods in which an impairment loss has
been recognised or reversed, and expand the disclosures
where the recoverable amount of impaired assets or CGUs
has been determined based on fair value less costs of
disposal.
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2. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (Continued)
HKFRIC 21 - Levies

HKFRIC 21 clarifies that an entity recognises a liability to
pay a levy imposed by government when the activity that
triggers payment, as identified by the relevant legislation,
occurs.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the potential impact of these new or amended HKFRSs
and the Board expects the application of these new or
amended HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

3.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements are
summarised below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated.
The adoption of new and revised HKFRSs and the impacts
on the Group's consolidated financial statements, if any,
are disclosed in note 2.

3.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis, except for
investment properties which are stated at fair values. The
measurement bases are fully described in the accounting
policies below.

The financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB") and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (“RMB’000"), except when otherwise indicated.

It should be noted that the accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparing these financial
statements. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge and judgment of current
events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ
from those estimates. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the financial statements
are disclosed in note 4.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Basis of consolidation and business
combination

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(note 3.3) made up to 31 March each year.

Inter-company transactions and balances between group
companies together with unrealised profits are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment on the asset transferred,
in which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income from the effective dates of
acquisition or up to the effective dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with those used by other
members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition
is measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date
fair value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and
equity interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
principally measured at acquisition date fair value. The
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the resulting
gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss.

The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis,
to measure the non-controlling interest that represent
present ownership interests in the subsidiary either at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value unless another measurement
basis is required by HKFRS. Acquisition-related costs
incurred are expensed unless they are incurred in issuing
equity instruments in which case the costs are deducted
from equity.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Basis of consolidation and business
combination (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement period
(@ maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date)
about the fair value at the acquisition date. All other
subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit
or loss.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interest
and the non-controlling interest are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
() the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
are accounted for in the same manner as would be
required if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed
of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of
non-controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling
interest's share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interest
having a deficit balance.

3. TESTHRHME #®)

32 HREEREKREH (B)

AU T 8 TR 2 T S AR E TR IR B
R EER - RREREZARERNHE
RENGEH (RRAKBARE12EA) B
IS ABENKBERZ A FEZHERKT
REEWER - DBRREEXRABIIRRELZ
PrA E A H IR ARG N8 et #ER -

AEBRMBRAR ZREZ MY N EEHK
EEHIE - ARIISERDER S - AEEERD
KIFFmpEm 2 REESD T ARE - ARBRE
EERMBAR ZER 28 - KPBEKIKE
P e REMNEMBEREQAFEZE
MERE BEERNEDRTER THEBERAAF
B’BEA -

EAKEREMBRARIEGIER  HEMEL
EMEBEERUTMEZEZR  (IBERREZ
NP EEEARE a2 AT E 2 A5 ()%
MEARZEE (BEBE) A EEEMIFHE
fetEas 2 BEREE - WABEELBED K
S ANEREMEERSERENBARE
B2 & FELARTARE 2 MR 5 AR

RUFEE  SEE s BRI B AR 2R
PR <SRMEA/NT T HEARZSE
BT BMFEBESEE R ESE
o 2EREBBIFEBERIFERERD - AIE
It B IR IR B A AR o



Sino Harbour Property Group Limited & & &b Z S @ AR AT Annual Report 2013/2014 F R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZ—_ZE—HNF=A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.3  Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is
able to exercise control. The Company controls an investee
if all three of the following elements are present: power
over the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns
from the investee, and the ability to use its power to affect
those variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts
and circumstances indicate that there may be a change in
any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

3.4 Joint arrangements

The group is a party to a joint arrangement where there is
a contractual arrangement that confers joint control over
the relevant activities of the arrangement to the group and
at least one other party. Joint control is assessed under the
same principles as control over subsidiaries.

The group classifies its interests in joint arrangements as
either:

- Joint ventures: where the group has rights to only
the net assets of the joint arrangement; or

- Joint operations: where the group has both the
rights to assets and obligations for the liabilities of
the joint arrangement.

In assessing the classification of interests in joint
arrangements, the Group considers:

The structure of the joint arrangement;

- The legal form of joint arrangements structured
through a separate vehicle;

- The contractual terms of the joint arrangement
agreement; and

- Any other facts and circumstances (including any
other contractual arrangements).

3. TESTHRHME #®)

3.3 KEAF

B A RIE AR R EH AT ERIERIE ZRIRE

73 e Thﬂfﬁbﬂ—% B:Iﬁnﬁ ZN/NIAIE 5
SETHEAEGIE  BRRELHEAED Y

KERLET 2 FB A HRE G AERERNAR

REERURIRE N 2N AT EZFLR -

E$,\&I SUBNE R 5% SR R TT R AT B
G BB RS

RARRB ZHERR KA ‘%TW%@ETZTQ%T
TRAANRREERE (0F) I8k - HEAE
ZEBERARNFIRE RN WA BEEAR -

3. HEZH

AEBER/KRLZH 7 BHORHETALE
B R E D — R HMTT KRIE %MEF‘&%E@J&T}F

HE AR RS E 2R 2 BRRBIEITRY
1E°

AN

i

RERKRLZHE 2 BEDER
- ARELE:AfEEHRH
FERARERN K

- AEER: AREHHRF
ENBETHERBERN -

Rzt BEE

ZHREZE

REHE R Lz » 8k - AEBEEE

-  HARHZZRE
- HEAZBZZEZETRALS - EBILEHE
M

— HRZHBHEZAOES

- EEEAFERER (BREMEBELD
L)

61




62

Sino Harbour Property Group Limited ‘& #&FhE S @ AR AT Annual Report 2013/2014 F 5§

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE SRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2014 B2 —ZT—NF=ZF=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Joint arrangements (Continued)

The Group accounts for its interests in joint ventures using
the equity method whereby they are initially recognised
at cost and thereafter, their carrying amount are adjusted
for the Group’s share of the post-acquisition change in the
joint ventures’ net assets except that losses in excess of the
Group’s interest in the joint ventures are not recognised
unless there is an obligation to make good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the
Group and its joint ventures are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in joint ventures.
The investor’s share in the joint ventures' profits and losses
resulting from these transactions is eliminated against the
carrying value of the interests in joint ventures. Where
unrealised losses provide evidence of impairment of the
asset transferred they are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Any premium paid for an investment in a joint venture
above the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired is
capitalised and included in the carrying amount of the
investment in joint venture. Where there is objective
evidence that the investment in a joint venture has been
impaired the carrying amount of the investment is tested
for impairment in the same way as other non-financial
assets.

The Group accounts for its interests joint operations by
recognising its share of assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses in accordance with its contractually conferred
rights and obligations.

The Company’s interests in joint ventures are stated at cost
less impairment losses, if any. Results of joint ventures are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.5 Foreign currency translation

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in RMB, which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency of the individual entity using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
At the reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the reporting date retranslation
of monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined and are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured at historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into RMB.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into RMB at the
closing rates at the reporting date. Income and expenses
have been converted into RMB at the exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates, or at the average rates over
the reporting period provided that the exchange rates do
not fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising from this
procedure have been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in the translation
reserve in equity.

When a foreign operation is disposed of, such exchange
differences are reclassified from equity to profit or loss as
part of the gain or loss on disposal.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.6 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration for
the sale of properties, rendering of services and the use by
others of the Group’s assets yielding interest and dividends,
net of rebates and discounts. Provided it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably,
revenue is recognised as follows:

Revenue arising from sale of properties held for sale is
recognised upon the transfer of the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of these properties held for sale to
the customers. Revenue is recognised upon the signing
of the sale and purchase agreement or the issue of an
occupation permit by the relevant government authorities,
whichever is the later. Deposits and instalments received
from customers prior to the date of revenue recognition
are included in current liabilities as receipts in advance.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in equal instalments over the periods covered
by the lease terms.

3.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The cost
of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to the working
condition and location for its intended use. Subsequent
costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. All other costs, such as
repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income during the period in
which they are incurred.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.7 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property,
plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight line method, at the following rates per
annum:

Computers and other equipment 20.0%
Motor vehicles 20.0%
Buildings 2.5%

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
reporting date.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

3.8 Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a property interest to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation. These include land
held for a currently undetermined future use and property
that is being constructed or developed for future use as
investment property.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are stated at fair value, unless it is still in the course of
construction or development at the reporting date and its
fair value cannot be reliably determined at that time.

Fair value is determined by external professional valuers
with sufficient experience with respect to both the location
and the nature of the investment properties. The carrying
amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position reflect the prevailing market conditions
at the reporting date.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.8 Investment properties (Continued)

Gain or loss arising from either a change in fair value
or the sale of investment properties is included in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year in which it arises.

For a transfer from properties held under development
to investment properties that is carried at fair value, any
difference between fair value of the property at that date
and its previous carrying amount is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Properties under construction or development for future
use as an investment property are classified as investment
property under construction. If the fair value cannot
be reliably determined, the investment property under
construction will be measured at cost until such time as
fair value can be determined or construction is completed.

When the Group completes the construction or
development of a self-constructed investment property,
any difference between the fair value of the property at
the completion date and its previous carrying amount is
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

3.9 Impairment of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment and the interests in
subsidiaries and a joint venture are subject to impairment
testing and are tested for impairment whenever there are
indications that the assets’ carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset's
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting
market conditions less cost to sell, and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessment of time value
of money and the risk specific to the asset.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.9 Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent
from those from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that generate
cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash generating unit). As
a result, some assets are tested individually for impairment
and some are tested at cash-generating unit level.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

3.10 Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific
asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for
a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination
is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement
takes the legal form of a lease.

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of assets remain within the lessor are accounted
for as operating lease. Where the Group has the use of
assets held under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a straight line basis over the
lease terms except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from
the leased assets. Lease incentives received are recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rental are charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.10 Leases (Continued)

Leasehold interests in land are up-front payments to
acquire the land use right. The payments are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated on the straight-line basis over
the lease term.

For leasehold interest in land included in properties held
under development and properties held for sale, the
amortisation of prepaid land lease is capitalised as part
of the building costs during the development period but
charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for completed properties. Other amortisation of
prepaid land lease is expensed.

Properties leased out under operating leases are included
in the consolidated statement of financial position as
investment properties. The recognition of rental income is
set out in note 3.6.

3.11 Financial assets

The Group's accounting policies for financial assets are set
out below.

Financial assets are classified into loans and receivables.

Management determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition depending on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired and where
allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at
every reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and only when,
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All regular way purchases and sales
of financial assets are recognised on trade date. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured
at fair value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair
value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction
costs.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.11 Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments expire or are
transferred and substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred.

At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed to
assess whether there is objective evidence of impairment.
If any such evidence exists, impairment loss is determined
and recognised based on the classification of the financial
asset.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Loans and receivables are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment losses. Amortised cost is
calculated taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate and transaction cost.

At each reporting date, financial assets other than at fair
value through profit or loss are reviewed to determine
whether there is any objective evidence of impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual financial
asset includes observable data that comes to the attention
of the Group about one or more of the following loss
events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.11 Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables (Continued)

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets include
observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from the
group of financial assets. Such observable data includes
but not limited to adverse changes in the payment status
of debtors in the group and, national or local economic
conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets in the

group.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
The amount of the loss is recognised in the profit or loss
of the period in which the impairment occurs. In relation
to trade and notes receivables, a provision for impairment
is made when there is objective evidence (such as the
probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties
of the debtor) that the Group will not be able to collect
all of the amounts due under the original terms of the
invoice. Except for trade and notes receivables, the carrying
amount of loans and receivables is directly reduced by any
identified amount of impairment. The carrying amount of
financial asset is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. When any part of financial asset is determined
as uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account for the relevant financial asset.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed to
the extent that it does not result in a carrying amount
of the financial asset exceeding what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised
at the date the impairment is reversed. The amount of the
reversal is recognised in profit or loss during the period in
which the reversal occurs.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.12 Properties held under development

Properties held under development which are held for
future sale are included in current assets and comprise
land held under operating lease (note 3.10) and aggregate
cost of development, materials and supplies, wages, and
other expenses (“development costs”). Properties held
under development are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Other expenses included (a) those costs
that are incurred in bringing the properties held under
development to their present location and condition; and
(b) a systematic allocation of fixed overheads that are
incurred on development of properties. Fixed overheads are
indirect costs which remain relatively constant regardless of
the size or volume of the development.

On completion, the properties are transferred to properties
held for sale. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and applicable selling expenses.

Properties under development are classified as current
assets unless the construction period of the relevant
property development project is expected to complete
beyond normal operating cycle.

3.13 Properties held for sale

In case of completed properties developed by the
Group, cost is determined by apportionment of the
total development costs for that development project,
attributable to the unsold properties. The cost of
completed properties held for sale comprises all costs of
purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition.

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less
estimated selling expenses.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.14 Accounting for income taxes
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those
obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities relating to
the current or prior reporting period, that are unpaid at
the reporting date. They are calculated according to the
tax rates and tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods to
which they relate, based on the taxable profit for the year.
All changes to current tax assets or liabilities are recognised
as a component of tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on
temporary differences at the reporting date between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, tax losses available to
be carried forward as well as other unused tax credits, to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit, including
existing taxable temporary differences, will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither taxable nor accounting
profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period the liability is
settled or the asset realised, provided they are enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.14 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

An exception to the general requirement on determining
the appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred tax
amount is when an investment property is carried at fair
value under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless
the presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts
on these investment properties are measured using the
tax rates that would apply on sale of these investment
properties at their carrying amounts at the reporting date.
The presumption is rebutted when the investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all the economic
benefits embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss, or in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity if they relate to items that are charged
or credited to other comprehensive income or directly to
equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented
in net if, and only if,

(@) the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities in net if, and only if,

(a) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.14 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

(b)  the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(i) different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets
on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered.

3.15 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in
hand, demand deposits with banks and short term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value. For the presentation of purpose of the
consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

3.16 Share capital and share premium

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have
been issued.

Share premium includes any premiums received on the
issuance of shares over the par value. Any transaction costs
associated with the issuance of shares are deducted from
share premium (net of any related income tax benefit) to
the extent they are incremental costs directly attributable
to the equity transaction.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.17 Retirement benefit costs and short-term
employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates a defined contribution scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance which is available to its employees in Hong
Kong. Contributions to the MPF Scheme by the Group and
employees are made based on a percentage of employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

Pursuant to the relevant regulations in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"), the Group has participated
in a local municipal government retirement benefit
scheme (the “Scheme”), whereby the Group is required
to contribute a certain percentage of basic salaries of its
employees to the Scheme to fund their retirement benefits.
The local municipal government undertakes to assume the
retirement benefits obligations of all existing and future
retired employees in the PRC. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the Scheme is to pay the ongoing
required contributions under the Scheme mentioned
above. The Group’s contributions to the Scheme are
expensed as incurred.

Short-term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits (other
than termination benefits) that are expected to be settled
wholly before twelve months after the end of the annual
reporting period in which the employees render the related
service. Short term employee benefits are recognised in the
year when the employees render the related service.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick
leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the time
of leave.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.18 Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts and other
payables and bank and other loans.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All
interest related charges are recognised in accordance with
the Group’s policy on borrowing costs (note 3.21).

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability, and the difference in respective carrying
amount is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Bank and other loans

Bank and other loans are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Bank and other loans
are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income over the period of the
loans using the effective interest method.

Bank and other loans are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the
reporting date.

Accounts payable and other payables
Accounts payable and other payables are recognised

initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.19 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future uncertain events not
wholly within the control of the Group, are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Contingent liabilities are recognised in the course of the
allocation of purchase price to the assets and liabilities
acquired in a business combination. They are initially
measured at fair value at the date of acquisition and
subsequently measured at the higher of the amount
that would be recognised in a comparable provision as
described above and the amount initially recognised less
any accumulated amortisation, if appropriate.

3. TESTHRHME #®)
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.20 Financial guarantees issued

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer (or guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified
debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair
value of the guarantee is initially recognised as deferred
income within accounts and other payables. Where
consideration is received or receivable for the issuance
of the guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to that
category of asset. Where no such consideration is received
or receivable, an immediate expense is recognised in profit
or loss on initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over the term
of the guarantee as income from financial guarantees
issued.

In addition, provisions are recognised if and when it
becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee will
call upon the Group under the guarantee and the amount
of that claim on the Group is expected to exceed the
current carrying amount i.e. the amount initially recognised
less accumulated amortisation, where appropriate.

3.21 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition, construction
or production of any qualifying asset are capitalised during
the period of time that is required to complete and prepare
the asset for its intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale. Other finance costs are
expensed.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset when expenditure for the asset is being
incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use
or sale are being undertaken. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs ceases when substantially all the activities necessary
to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale
are completed.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESHERHEBE &)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.22 Dividends 3.22 RE

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as EEREZ AR ERNERZADEARE R

a separate allocation of retained profits within equity, until 2B BEEEBAKREENRE A B
they have been approved by the shareholders in a general RS EAIE BEZEREEMERT IR
meeting. When these dividends are approved and declared, HuRAs—BAE FHEEEHBEEZZNT
they are recognised as a liability. Interim dividends are VR B P EIRR BN E S N TR BN HE
simultaneously proposed and declared and consequently, RE—IEHAE -

interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability
when they are proposed and declared.

3.23 Related parties 3.23 BES
(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family (@ MW—RBALTATHIENR  BliZA+TZ
is related to the Group if that person: AT ZERREEREEFRE -
(i) has control or joint control over the Group; (i) S 7N 52 [ A5 AR ) A sl L [R) A5 ol A
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or (il BAREBEEAZE : 5
(iiy  is a member of key management personnel (i) ARXEEXARARFRAIZEEE
of the Group or the Company’s parent. BERE o
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the (b) MWM—FREERFES TH(EMEHE - BNERK
following conditions apply: SEBHE
(i) The entity and the Group are members of (i) ZEEHAERER —S£BZKE
the same group (which means that each ~a (SRR WERAR KA
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is AWNBARIEEM A HEE) -

related to the others).

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture (il —FKEBRAR BEZEZ NG
of the other entity (or an associate or joint S8 PE (NAEFEEEKEANAZ
venture of a member of a group of which B NRISE S E MB— 85
the other entity is a member). BiZEB KB NT]) o

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same (i) MREBEHAR—F=H28%
third party. EE

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity (ivy, —XERAF-"FEEZ2EZ%D
and the other entity is an associate of the ¥ MmMBE—ERAZF=-"FBE,
third entity. BN T o
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.23 Related parties (Continued)
(b) (Continued)

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees of the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner,;

(ii) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(i)  dependents of that person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.

3.24 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the executive directors
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group’s business components and for their review of the
performance of those components.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal to the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:

Fair value of investment properties, and properties
held under development and properties held for sale
upon transfer to investment properties

Properties held under development and properties held for
sale upon transfer to investment properties of the Group
were stated at fair value in accordance with the accounting
policy. The fair value of the investment properties
is determined by a firm of independently qualified
professional surveyors and the fair value of investment
properties as at the reporting dates and properties held
under development and properties held for sale upon
transfer to investment properties are set out in notes
15, 18 and 19 respectively. Such valuation was based on
certain assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty and
might materially differ from the actual results.

Impairment of accounts and other receivables

The Group’s management assesses the collectability of
accounts and other receivables. This estimate is based on
the credit history of its customers or counterparties and
the current market condition. Management reassesses the
impairment loss at the reporting date.

4. ERGFHEETRHE
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

Net realisable value of properties held for sale and
properties held under development

Management determines the net realisable value of
properties held for sale and properties under development
by using prevailing market data such as most recent sale
transactions and market survey reports available from
independent property valuers, and internal estimates of
costs based on quotes by suppliers.

These estimates require judgement as to the anticipated
sale prices by reference to recent sales transactions in
nearby locations, rate of new property sales, marketing
costs (including price discounts required to stimulate
sales) and the expected costs of completion of properties,
the legal and regulatory framework and general market
conditions.

4.2 Critical judgements in applying the entity’s
accounting policies

Revenue recognition

The Group has recognised revenue from sale of properties
held for sale during the year as disclosed in note 6 to the
financial statements. The assessment of when an entity has
transferred the significant risks and rewards of ownership
to buyer requires examination of the circumstances of the
transaction. In most cases, the transfer of risks and rewards
of ownership coincides with the transfer of the legal title
or the passing of possession to the buyer or a completion
certificate is issued by the relevant government authorities.
The Group believes that its recognition basis of sales as set
out in note 3.6 is appropriate and is the current practice in
the PRC.

4. EBAREFHEFTRAE (@)

4.1 EXEFEFRER (F)

FEYERBRTYRZ 25 FE

ERERBRNBEERS LB Y EMERMRE
WS HERESHTMHEE - LREMH
fER R 2 MEIEL 2 RER A EEMEE F
EMELFAEFYRZAIERFE -

WEHHERAZEWOME TIHFEERS -
MEHER  HEER (BREHEMFERT
#) LEMERTRYMEZER  RERER
RIBLAR—MRTN - SRS EF L #IE -

42 ERERSBURREL 2 EEZHE

WA R

BN HRAMT6ATIEE - AEEEBRFENR
HESEMEZWA - EFHEREEREZ
BEARAREEOREREEH 2 BRI BEHR

SERELRE - EAHEDBRT B HE
R EEFRZEMARNE BB AT ER
IR RIEBRSIABRAHERLRTEE Y
B o NEBRAME36FTE 2 IHE-REE
BEE  UHFEPBEERER -



Sino Harbour Property Group Limited & & &b Z S @ AR AT Annual Report 2013/2014 F R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZ—_ZE—HNF=A=+—HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.2 Critical judgements in applying the entity’s
accounting policies (Continued)

Estimates of current tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to taxation in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the
amount of the provision of taxation and the timing of
payment of the related taxation. Where the final tax
outcome is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in periods in which such
determination are made.

The Group is subject to Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT") in
the PRC. However, the implementation and settlement
of this tax varies among various tax jurisdictions in cities
of the PRC, and the Group has not finalised its LAT
calculation and payments with any local tax authorities
in the PRC. Accordingly, significant judgement is required
in determining the amount of the land appreciation
and its related LAT. The Group recognised LAT based
on management’s best estimates according to the
understanding of the tax rules.

4. EBAREFHEFTRAE (@)
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION

An operating segment is a component of the Group that is
engaged in business activities from which the Group may
earn revenue and incur expenses, and is identified on the
basis of the internal management reporting information
that is provided to and regularly reviewed by the Group’s
executive directors in order to allocate resources and assess
performance of the segment. For the years presented,
executive directors have determined that the Group has
only one single business component/reportable segment
as the Group is only engaged in the business of sale and
lease of properties which is the basis to allocate resources
and assess performance.

The geographical location of the specified non-current
assets is based on the physical location of the asset, in
the case of property, plant and equipment, the location
of the operation. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the majority of the Group’'s operation and
centre of management are sourced from its subsidiaries
in Jiangxi Province, the PRC, which considered that the
operation base of the Group is domiciled in the PRC, as
one geographical location and therefore, no analysis of
geographical information is presented.

The total revenue from external customers is mainly
sourced from the PRC. The total revenue is disclosed in
note 6.
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6. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 6. WARHEAMUYKA
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, and other FREDZ WA (MEREBzE%E5E) NEM
income recognised during the year are as follows: WAL
2014 2013
—E-{OF —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETFTT
Revenue WA
Sale of properties held for sale HEFEYE 476,339 559,918
Other income Hig A

Net fair value gain on investment properties, $&& ¥ % REEEIEE
and properties held under development W% 2RERMER

and properties held for sale HEMELAFERTFE
upon transfer to investment properties 93,529 32,380
Interest income LB A
— from bank deposits — RBRITIFN 6,404 3,773
— from other receivables — R B H M EWKIE = 3,620
6,404 7,393
Rental income MHEWa= 6,669 1,155
Consultancy fee income EISE= PN 1,271 -
Sundry income I A — 30
107,873 40,958
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BERE
2014 2013
—E—mF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®TR ARBETT

Interest charges on financial liabilities R ATIER 2

stated at amortised cost: TREEZRERX

Bank loans wholly repayable within five years ZBRAERNDEHEE 2
RITER 26,602 11,994

Other loans wholly repayable within five years BN HERN 2 HEE 2
Hh &3 29,862 4,790
56,464 16,784

Less: amount capitalised in properties held & @ B & AN {EAFIE T

under development M2 2 FE (56,464) (16,784)
The weighted average capitalisation rate of borrowings FAN - BEZNEFHEREE /T F5.02%

was 5.02% (2013: 6.25%) per annum for the year. —E—=9F :16.25%) °
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8. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

ME=R=+—HILFE

8. FBRETEHAIER

2014 2013
—E-MF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR%T ARETTT
Profit before income tax is arrived BRATSBADRR LR
at after charging/(crediting): (T A) UTHIEBER :
Auditor’s remuneration % BN B 741 611
Cost of properties held for sale MRERSZ 2 FEMERNKN
recognised as expense 296,420 338,177
Depreciation (note 14(b)) e (KsE14(b)) 1,007 742
Exchange gain, net ME 5 W e H 5 (325) (11)
Loss on disposal/written off of property, BE/MEmE  BER
plant and equipment BBz EE - 6
Operating lease charge in respect of land THREFZEEHERE
and buildings 609 659
Less: amount capitalised in properties held ¥ : 2 &N {E ARG
under development IE k= (6) (70)
603 589
Outgoings in respect of investment HERNREMERTEEZ
properties that generated rental income MeEWRABB2zZRAX
during the year 379 221
Staff costs, including directors’ BTINRA (BEEEMSE)
emoluments (note 13) (F$5E13)
— Wages and salaries —TITENEH® 18,176 14,084
— Retirement benefit scheme contributions — RIRERFHEIE
— defined contribution plans — EREMHGTE 1,753 1,456
Less: amount capitalised in properties held & : B ¥ & AMb{E AR EE T
under development M2 2 HE (8,212) (6,328)
11,717 9,212
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9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. MBHEX
2014 2013
—E-nmF —F—=f
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFTT
Current tax — the PRC ENEAFiIE — b
Current year REE
— Enterprise income tax (“EIT") — REFTEH 20,972 36,532
~ LAT — T HuIBER 24,352 33,044
45,324 69,576
Deferred income tax (note 26) IEFEFTEH (MIFE26) 28,076 3,384
Total income tax expense RSB A5 73,400 72,960

EIT has been provided on the estimated profits of
subsidiaries operating in the PRC at 25% (2013: 25%).

Under the law of the PRC on EIT, corporate withholding
income tax is levied on the foreign investor for the
dividends distributed out of the profits generated by the
foreign investment enterprises. The Group's applicable
withholding income tax rate is at 10 % (2013: 10%),).

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to
60% on the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds
from sales of properties less deductible expenditures
including cost and land use rights, borrowing costs,
business tax and all property development expenditures.
The tax is incurred upon transfer of property ownership.
There are certain exemptions available for the sales of
ordinary residential properties if the appreciation values
do not exceed 20% of the total deductible items (as
defined in the relevant PRC tax laws). Sales of commercial
properties are not eligible for such an exemption.

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% (2013:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the year.
No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the Group
had no estimated assessable profits arising in or derived
from Hong Kong for both years.

TEMSHRIIMETRRLEL ZHB AR 2 et
AR 25% (ZE—=% : 25%) {EL B o

RIFPBECEMERE - HIINBEREFEREI
RECEMELE 28NN KB ERTA
HAEH - AEBERZAAMSHRERS

10% (ZF—=%F : 10%) °

THIREF IR EEZIEEAREFTE30%
F60%HW - LHEBEZIBEREENEME
FRIR R A HUR B 2 B R A A fo {5 FRAE
fEERA EEBLABNEZRRHAX - A
ROEREREBRELE - HE-—REEVWE
AEETES  HBERTABERNRER
(EERMEATEBER) BB 220% - HER X
MELBEERESHERHAR

EBNEHIZFRGHFTERE G T A16.5%

ZE—=F :16.5%) 57t H - ARNAKERNX
MIEFEE RS EEFBEL NESETAIETE
R AT MW EERBEFSHEE -
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9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

9. FREHRAX @)

Reconciliation between income tax expense and REAMEFTERSRAIES R ¥R
accounting profit at applicable tax rates is as follows: N
2014 2013
—2-mEF —g—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETF T
Profit before income tax MRAT S B AR 214,363 198,180
Tax on profit before income tax, BR P S B AR AT I8 -
calculated at the rates applicable to BEBRVEAER BN
profit in the jurisdiction concerned MAMERETE 52,933 47,362
Tax effect of non-taxable income BERBMAZ RIBEZE (959) (629)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A 2 IR E 71 1,228
Provision of LAT for the year FRTHIBEREE 24,352 33,044
Tax effect on EIT of LAT payable FEAT T IBER 2 B3
FREM 2 HIBR 2 (6,088) (8,261)
Tax effect of unrecognised tax loss RERMIEBEHELE 2,317 1,002
Utilisation of tax loss previously FREFAERZTIAEE
not recognised (2,399) (1,775)
Tax effect of withholding tax AP HIBERE 2,533 989
Income tax expense FRS TR 2 73,400 72,960

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE 10. XD BEEAELEREF

TO THE OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

Among the consolidated profit attributable to owners
of the Company during the year of approximately
RMB143,768,000 (2013: RMB126,444,000), a loss of
RMB1,485,000 (2013: profit of RMB38,475,000) has been
dealt with the financial statements of the Company.

FR KRB BEEAEBEEZEERNDAA
R #143,768,000c (ZZE —=F: AR
126,444,0007T) + E 1 A R #1,485,0007T 2
BB (ZE—=%: AKR#%38,475,0007T Z &
) ERARRFEHRRARE ©
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11. DIVIDENDS

Dividends of the Company attributable to the year are as
follows:

11. KR
CBANEEAATZBREMT

2014 2013
b ES —T—=F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBFT
Proposed final dividend (2013: HK4 cents BRAHRE (ZZ—=%:
per ordinary share) (note) B E @AR4EW) (FFE) = 38,741
Note: BI5E -

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2014.

For the year ended 31 March 2013, a final dividend of HK4 cents
per ordinary share, amounting to HK$48,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB38,741,000), were declared and paid to the
shareholders of the Company. This final dividend was reflected as an
appropriation of retained profits for the year ended 31 March 2014.

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE FOR PROFIT
ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share amount is based
on the profit for the year attributable to the owners of the
Company of RMB143,768,000 (2013: RMB126,444,000)
and the ordinary shares of 1,200,000,000 (2013:
1,200,000,000) in issue during the year.

The diluted earnings per share is the same as the basic
earnings per share, as the Group has no dilutive potential
shares during the current and prior years.

é%ATL%/ﬁﬁ@i_y ME=A=+—HILFE
ZREPRE -

Eti_? —FZAZ+t—BLEFE FXHEREER

T 3E ARAE Il (A $£48,000,000/8 7T © HERHARE
38741 ,0007T) EERKEIRMS FTARBIMKRE o 2 RHAK
EERMARBE-—T-—ME=A=1—RAIEEaR
B FEHm—E#E -

12 ARAFRERABERAN Z2ER
27

BEREABNEZEARNRRAEE ARG

A A E #143,768,000T (= & — = & :
A R #126,444,000T) & & AN B % 17
T 3@ A%1,200,000,0000% (= & — = 4F

1,200,000,0000%) 51 & -

HRASEEAFENBETFEAL EBELHE
B HEBEREEATRGRERNRT S H
MR e
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13.

(a)

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION, FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENT

Directors’ emoluments

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to the Listing
Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance are as follows:

13. EE5M- - AEBEEFMA LR
SREEENE

(a) ESM=

BIEEMRANRBEBERNTHEAIE161KIFECE
EEEWT

Salaries, Retirement
allowances Benefit
and other  Discretionary scheme
Fees benefits bonuses  contributions Total
§e 28R RIKER
He HipEH HigRa BE LS @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFR
Year ended 31 March 2014 HZ-2-N#F
ZA=t-HLEEE
Executive directors HiTEZE
Mr. Shi Feng R&gE 634 - - 6 640
Mr. Wong Lui ok ivte 485 68 147 12 712
Non-executive director FHTEE
Ms. Chan Heung Ling BmE Tt 647 366 79 - 1,092
Independent non-executive directors BUIHTEE
Mr. Lee Man To TEELE 143 = = = 143
Mr. Xie Gang i e 95 - - - 95
Ms. Zhang Juan RIEXT 95 - - - 95
2,099 434 226 18 2,777
Year ended 31 March 2013 HE2-E-=&
ZAZ+-RALEE
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Shi Feng hE%E 650 - - 2 672
Mr. Wong Lui iR Sined 487 92 127 12 718
Non-executive director IRTEE
Ms. Chan Heung Ling Rimk &+ 650 126 54 - 830
Independent non-executive directors BUFHTEE
Mr. Lee Man To ZHELE 146 - - - 146
Mr. Xie Gang BRI 4 97 - - - 97
Ms. Zhang Juan RiBEL 97 - - - 97

2,127 218 181 34 2,560
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13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION, FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENT
(Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

There is no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments during the year (2013:
Nil).

Mr. Shi Feng is also the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company and his emolument disclosed above includes
those of services rendered by him as the Chief Executive
Officer.

(b)  Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group include three (2013: three) directors, whose
emoluments are included in the disclosures above. The
emoluments of the remaining two (2013: two) highest
paid individuals, whose emoluments fell within the salary
band of Nil to HK$1,000,000, for the year ended 31
March 2014 were as follows:

13. EEFM - AEESFMALTR
EREEEME (@)

(a) EEME (&)

FA BEEINRLARERETAMS 2L
B(ZF—=F:]|) -

RAEEENRRBARRZERNITE - ML
BREZN NEBREREERERERNITE PTRM
R ZME -

(b) EEBSHMAL

AEBRERSTFMALTERE=2(Z2—=
FZR)EE EMESERN X CWE - #
E-Z—NF=ZA=Z+—HBILFE BTWA
TE-=F WA xeaMATZBMe Gf
S EHENFZEZE1,000,0008 T2 M) 0T ¢

2014 2013

—F-mF —T=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFTR AREETIT

Salaries, allowances and other benefits e R REHMETR 611 603
Discretionary bonuses By IETEAL 235 97
Retirement benefit scheme contributions IRUKEFIET B R 17 12
863 712

No emolument was paid by the Group to any of the
directors or the highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for
loss of office during the year (2013: Nil).

FAAEERERTINEFIESFMAL
SAEMMEERIMAIIMAREBIL 2 ZE
SEEREE (T —=F : |&) o
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13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION, FIVE 13. %?%ﬁ@ﬂ LEBSFTMALTR
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SREEEME &)
SENIOR MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENT
(Continued)
()  Senior management emolument () SHEEEMS
The emoluments paid or payable to members of non- ENRENIEESRAEEERKE M
director senior management were within the following N
bands:
2014 2013
—E-MF —E=F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z%1,000,000/8 7T 6 6
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. 9% BERRHE
The Group AEE
Computers
and other
equipment Motor vehicles Buildings Total
ERRHMRE "E BT st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETFT ARETT ARETT
At 1 April 2012 R-Z2--FMA-H
Cost AR 1,154 4,543 599 6,296
Accumulated depreciation Z:E (551) (1,810) (198) (2,559)
Net carrying amount BRE A 603 2,733 401 3,737
Year ended 31 March 2013 Bz-%-=f
=R=1t-RL%E
Opening net carrying amount HIEEFE 603 2,733 401 3,737
Additions RE 191 - - 191
Written off K| - (55) - (55)
Depreciation ik (279) (788) (27) (1,094)
Exchange realignment i 5 AR - 8) - 8)
Closing net carrying amount HRREFE 515 1,882 374 2,771
At 31 March 2013 and 1 April 2013 R-ZE-=5=F=+-H
k=B-=%£NA-H
Cost AR 1,345 4,480 599 6,424
Accumulated depreciation Z:E (830) (2,598) (225) (3,653)

Net carrying amount BEFE 515 1,882 374 2,771
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. V¥ BERRKE &)
(Continued)
The Group (Continued) RER (E)
Computers
and other
equipment Motor vehicles Buildings Total
ERREMRE "E BT @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT AREFT ARETT
Year ended 31 March 2014 Hz-%2-n%
ZA=T-HLEE
Opening net carrying amount HOREFE 515 1,882 374 2,771
Additions NE 1,112 881 - 1,993
Transfer from properties held for sale BEEYEEE
(note 19) (MEE19) - - 8,320 8,320
Disposals HE - (98) - (98)
Depreciation e (390) (816) (93) (1,299)
Exchange realignment [ 5% - (13) - (13)
Closing net carrying amount BRREEE 1,237 1,836 8,601 11,674
At 31 March 2014 R-Z-ME=R=+-H
Cost PR 2,452 5,242 8,919 16,613
Accumulated depreciation 2:irE (1,215) (3,406) (318) (4,939)
Net carrying amount FREFE 1,237 1,836 8,601 11,674

At 31 March 2014, the Group's certain buildings of RZEBE—NF=A=+—H AEBHARKE
approximately RMB8,253,000 (2013: Nil) were pledged for 8,253,000t (ZE—=F: &) v ETEF]

other loans (note 25) of the Group. MAEE Z HMER (HiE25) fEEF -
Notes: PEE
(@) Buildings held by the Group are located in the PRC. (a) REEBEZBFARFE -
(b) Depreciation charges have been included in: (b) WERSBERIA:
2014 2013
—E—lmE —E-=F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFT
Consolidated statement of financial position A SRR
— capitalised in properties held under development — BARMLEERZERYE 292 352
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income LETEREE
- selling and distribution expenses —HERDHER 161 142
— administrative expenses —BEEBR 846 600
1,007 742

1,299 1,094
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

15. BREYHE

The Group AEE

2014 2013
—E-IF —E-=F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT ARETTT
At beginning of the year F9) 111,625 72,272
Transfer from properties held under development SRRy E - 37,125
Transfer from properties held for sale SEEE=IEX T 237,477 -

Net fair value change (debited)/credited to the (1) /2t A5 A 2 mikas
consolidated statement of comprehensive income RZANFEESFE (17,754) 2,228
At end of the year FR 331,348 111,625

The investment properties included property interest in
land located in the PRC with lease terms expiring from
2043 to 2047 (2013: in 2043). As at 31 March 2014
and 2013, the building ownership certificates of certain
investment properties of the Group have not yet been
obtained. In the opinion of the independent PRC legal
advisors of the Group, the Group is entitled to obtain the
building ownership certificates without legal impediment
and is entitled to lawfully and validly use the investment
properties during the year.

At 31 March 2014, an investment property of
approximately RMB245,736,000 (2013: RMB37,125,000)
was pledged against other loans of the Group (note 25).

Investment properties are leased to non-related parties
under operating lease (note 30).

During the year ended 31 March 2014, properties held
for sale and properties held under development with the
carrying value of approximately RMB126,194,000 (2013:
Nil) (note 19) and Nil (2013: RMB6,973,000) (note 18)
were transferred to investment properties respectively as
these properties were under operating lease arrangements
with third parties during the year to earn rental. The fair
value of these properties upon transfer to investment
properties of approximately RMB237,477,000 (2013:
RMB37,125,000). The total net fair value change of
investment properties approximately of RMB93,529,000
(2013: RMB32,380,000) was credited to profit or loss for
the year.

RAMEBBUNTEz LY X #a 18
MR —_FEN=FE=_FONLFZH (ZF—=
FZFTM=F)EmM - RZF-—MEFR=F
—=F=ZA=t+—H AKERETEREVEH
ARGEEMAREE - AEB 2BV FEUR
BEARR AKBERERSFEEMGEEMN
WA R R B R F NG AT A B A
KEME -

R-ZZE—WMF=ZA=+—H BEWEHA
R #245,736,000c (Z & —=F: AR
37,125,0007T) JWEAARER 2 EME R 2K
# (Bff5E25) °

REMEDNHETFTKELHEPNBETINIEBES
(MF5E30)

BE-_Z-—NF=A=+—HLFERN  FEA
EDRl# A ARE126,194,000T (Z T —=
Foo|E)(fF19) EE(ZE—=F: AR
6,973,0007T) (FI5E18) 2 FFEME KM EH
VMEEBRZREWE  REAZZEWETR
BFANEE=FFI V2 &EHE L HEREAE
T REEBREREVMEMELFELNE
AR #237,477,000 (ZFE—=F : ARK
37,125,0007T) ° #5499 & A KR #93,529,000
T (ZZE—=%F: AR¥32,380,00070) 2&K&
YN ESEFEIAARNFEE 2 BREA -
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
The Group (Continued)

The fair value of the investment properties at 31 March
2013 and 2014 was revalued by Jones Lang LaSalle
Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited, a firm of
independent qualified professional surveyors who have the
recent experience in the location and category of property
being valued, which was based on the direct comparison
approach, assuming sale of the property interests in
their existing state with the benefit of immediate vacant
possession and by making reference to comparable sales
transactions as available in the relevant market while
appropriate adjustments and analysis are considered to the
differences in location, size and other characters between
the comparable properties and the subject properties;
and the income approach by taking into account the
net rental income derived from its existing leases and/or
achievable in the existing market with due allowance for
the reversionary income potential of the leases, which have
been then capitalised to determine the market value at an
appropriate capitalisation rate.

The fair value of investment properties is a level 3 recurring
fair value measurement. A reconciliation of the opening
and closing fair value balance is provided below.

15. REWE (&)
KEMW (4F)

BREMER _T—=FR-_FT-OF=A=+
—BZRAFELAEGREEREEM B
BENERIMER B ERBEXREA
THEBITERNERERNERARETERN
A - MEDAERLEERKE  BRRYE
RERERARRNRRELE W2 EHH
MGZAALRHEERS WA BALBMEE
REMEAEMUE  HEMEMFEI EcEZR
EHEE BB IO - URABATE R KR -
AAREHERAEEMERE HERKTS L
ARG ZHEWRAHRE  YHEE 2 JEEE
ERAFLEEEZE  SHERAREE ZE
NMELLREREAEETSEE -

BREMEZ AFERFINEH LR FENE -
FONRERDFHELHHREHIMT -

2014

BN

RMB’000

ARBTR

Opening balance (level 3 recurring fair value) FEH (E3IREEHELTE) 111,625

Transfer from properties held for sale (note 19) BEEmEER (H:319) 237,477

Change in revaluation of investment properties TEMEE[E BT ARLMA

included in other income (17,754)

Closing balance (level 3 recurring fair value) FRERS (BIREEHERTE) 331,348
Change in unrealised gains or losses for the year included BR=ZA=+—HBEEFABEZ

in profit or loss for assets held at 31 March (note 6) FRAERMESEEE S (H7E6) 93,529
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 15. BREWHE (&)
The Group (Continued) AEBR (&)

The following table shows the significant unobservable TRINTEERXPAANERTATHEH A

inputs used in the valuation model. R -
Relationship of
Fair value Valuation Significant Range of unobservable inputs
Properties hierarchy technique unobservable inputs unobservable inputs to fair value
TUBEBABERY
nE NYEER fhERkl  EATTBEBAHE FUREGAHEEE NYENEE
Commercial offices in the PRC 3 Direct comparison Price per square meter RMB12,900 - The higher the price,
approach RMB15,000 the higher the fair value
MEZAEHLE 3 EENBA FYHIABR ARE129007% USHER
ARH15,0007C NYEES
Shop units in the PRC 3 Direct comparison Price per square meter RMB13,289 - The higher the price,
approach RMB34,600 the higher the fair value
E R EN 3 ERLEE BYKER AE#13280702 BrREs -
AR#34,6007 NHERS
Shop units in the PRC 3 Income approach Term yield 2.0% The higher the term yield,
the lower the fair value
Reversionary yield 2.5%  The higher the reversionary yield,
the lower the fair value
Bl BREN 3 LN il g 2.0% il GRS
NFEBE
ERREE 25% GRS
DFEBE
There were no changes to the valuation techniques during FRGER M EEE) -
the year.
The fair value measurement is based on the above ANEEHENER W E s SES RRERS
properties’ highest and best use, which does not differ (BEREHERERTEEZR) -

from their actual use.
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16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16. RHIBAT 2R

The Company ¥ /N
2014 2013
—F-NF —F=F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARET T
Unlisted investment, at cost JELTIRE - AR 285,452 285,452

(@  Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, each of @) R-ZE—ME=A=+—8 TEBE
which is a limited liability company, as at 31 March ANE (BB ABERRAR) 2585
2014, were as follows: N
Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ paid ordinary
establishment and share capital/
Company name operation registered capital Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
BETR
ERRL/ BAREER

LEL RURERBE RA /g E# BE IEXHK

Sino Harbour Property Holdings British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share 100% - Investment
Limited ("SHPH") ("BVI") of US$1 holding

EERLES \REBRERIXTZERR  BH.2100 - REBR
(RBR&ES])

Sino Harbour Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary - 100%  Investment
("Sino Harbour") shares of HK$1 each holding

ERERAG (NE4]) &R 10,000RBRAEETL EBR - BAZI0  REER

Enrich H.K. Investments Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of - 100%  Investment
Limited HK$1 each holding

FHEEREARAT &% 100 SREEI T2 EBR - EAZIO  RASK

Jiangxi Asia City Real Estate PRC US$25,000,000 - 100%  Property
Development Co., Ltd. development
("Jiangxi Asia City ")

TR ERS E 25,000,000%7 - BRI BHERE
BRAE (NIETME))

Fuzhou Pan Hong Kai Xuan PRC RMB280,000,000 - 100%  Property
Property Development Co., development
Ltd. (“Fuzhou Pan Hong ")

EINNE et ERE GilEi AR 280,000,000 - BRI EHERE
ARRE ([HERE])

Nanchang Liyang Decoration PRC RMB5,000,000 (2013: RMB500,000) - 100%  Interior design
Limited (2013: 100%) and decoration

BEMELEHIRARLA GilEi ARH5,000,0007T - BAI0 AERREE

(ZZ—=F: AR¥500,0007C) (z2-=%:

B9.2100)




98 Sino Harbour Property Group Limited ‘& #&FhE S @ AR AT Annual Report 2013/2014 F 5§

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE SRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2014 B2 —ZT—NF=ZF=+—HIFE

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 16. RMIBARZRER (&)
(@)  Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, each of (@ MRZE—NF=A=+—H TE2HW=B

which is a limited liability company, as at 31 March
2014, were as follows: (Continued)

™ (&)

NE(BREREBERRAR) ZFBEHIIM

Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ paid ordinary
establishment and share capital/
Company name operation registered capital Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
BETR
AL/ HREBR
LEL RYREHHE BA /EREs B B EEH
Nanchang Dingxun Co. Ltd. PRC RMB100,000,000 - 55%  Property
("Nanchang Dingxun”) (2013: RMB66,685,000) (2013: 55%) development
HERRERARAR EF AK%100,000,0007T - BAZ5S  BHERE
(1=E 50 (ZZ-=F - ARH66,685,0007) (z2—=%:
BHZ55)
Leping City Fenghuang Jincheng Industry - PRC RMB24,500,000 - 51%  Property
Co., Ltd. ("Leping Fenghuang”) development
EYTEELHERARAT f AR#24,500,0007C - BAZS  RBHERE
(E 35100
Sino Harbour Development Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of - 100%  Investment
Limited HK$1 each holding
WEERERAA A \REREEETZ LER - BA2100  REER
Sino Africa Investment and Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary share of - 100%  Investment
Development Group Ltd HK$1 each holding
MEREEREEARAT &R 10,000 R EE BT BB - BAI00  REER
Sino Harbour Development and Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares of - 100%  Dormant
Investment Limited (note (i)) HK$1 each
ERERREARRAF (W) i 10,000 SR ERE BT EER - BALI0  EEER
Hangzhou Ganglian Real Estate PRC RMB309,833,000 - 100%  Property
Co., Ltd (note (i) development
RMEREZARAR (K0) G AR#309,833,0007 - BAI0  EHERE
Capital Manager Investment BVI 50,000 ordinary shares of - 100%  Investment
Limited (note (i) US$1 each holding
(FF&E i) ABRIES 50,000/ BREE1E T2 BBk - BAI0 RAER
Notes: PEE
(i) These companies were newly incorporated during the year ) HERARREBE T NF=A=+—HILFE
ended 31 March 2014. Ak o
(i) The company alloted 50,000 ordinary shares of US$1 each to (i) WARIRZ-ZZE—=FNA+—BHRAANEEA 2

the Group on 11 April 2013.

50,000 @R TEE1E T2 EBAL
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R B R B 2 s ()

TXEI - FZEAHAREMEEEXN
ZEBFERER KB ARMSRA
ZHBEERRE -

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 16.

(b) Set out below are the summarised financial (b)
information for Nanchang Dingxun, a subsidiary
that has a non-controlling interests which is material
to the Group.

Summarised statement of financial position BN I E
As at 31 March
R=A=+—H
2014 2013
—2-EF —E—=F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥ETR ARETIT
Current psin¥: i
Assets BE 292,667 148,240
Liabilities af& (78,859) (56,271)
Total net current assets RBEEFEAE 213,808 91,969
Non-current FERE
Assets EE 482 413
Liabilities =N (125,000) (30,000)
Total net non-current liabilities FRBEEFELESE (124,518) (29,587)
Net assets EEFE 89,290 62,382
Accumulated non-controlling interests Rt FERERS 4,819 2,017
Summarised statement of comprehensive income PEH Y EEE

For the year ended 31 March
BE=ZA=+—-HLHFE

2014 2013

—E-mF —F=F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR%TR ARETTT

Revenue WA = -
Loss before income tax BrFT{S B AT 1B (6,226) (2,721)
Total comprehensive income ZHEHKSEAE (6,226) (2,727)
Loss allocated to a non-controlling interest DR T IEERR S 2 BB (2,802) (1,224)

Dividends paid to a non-controlling interest

AN TR ER R 2 BRE
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16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 16. RMIBATR 2= (&)
(b)  (Continued) by (&)
Summarised statement of cash flows B hEXHE

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—-BHLEE

2014 2013
—E-HmF —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETTT
Cash flows from operating activities RETBHFIEERESRE
Cash used in operations KEEETARS (162,887) (35,818)
Interest received B U B 391 36
Income taxes paid B AEHN - (1
Net cash used in operating activities AR BT I 4 FEE (162,496) (35,783)
Cash flows from investing activities RETZBFEERESRE
Purchase of property, plants and equipment BEVE  BENMKEG (254) (74)
Net cash used in investing activities KEZE TR 2 558 (254) (74)
Cash flows from financing activities METBMEERESRE
Proceeds from new borrowings FEEMSHIA 135,000 50,000
Repayment of borrowings BREE (20,000) -
Proceeds from issuance of share capital BITIRANFTISFIE 33,135 -
Net cash generated from financing activities [ & F B f 1732 £ F58 148,135 50,000
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and HeERESZEY
cash equivalents GRA),/ iS4 (14,615) 14,143
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FUREeNBFASEFEYD
of the year 16,499 2,356
Cash and cash equivalent FREESRBASEEY
at the end of year 1,884 16,499
17. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 17. REgb¥EHER
The Group AEH
2014 2013
—2-mF —F-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTTT
Unlisted investment, at cost ELETIRE @ LA 50,000 50,000
Share of post-acquisition loss SR EE (3,033) (2,553)
46,967 47,447
Amount due from a joint venture EW—RELBERIE 135,470 126,702

182,437 174,149
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17. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE
(Continued)

The Group (Continued)

Jiangxi Ganghong Investment Co. Ltd. (“Jiangxi
Ganghong”) is a strategic partnership for the Group,
and engaged in property development in the PRC. The
contractual arrangement provides the Group with only the
rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement, with the
rights to the assets and obligation for the liabilities of the
joint arrangement resting primarily with Jiangxi Ganghong.
Under HKFRS 11 this joint arrangement is classified as a
joint venture and has been included in the consolidated
financial statements using the equity method. As at
31 March 2014, the Group had interest in the following
joint venture:

e P wRME

TE=A=t—RILEE
17. REEDEIRES (£)

REE (&)

TREHREXEBRAR (DImE’]) RAKHE
MBEAIERH  ETELEFHERE -4
%?%Eﬁgl%TﬁﬁﬁAéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
R - MALRHEENMBEREIENA
TBE #Jﬁ%m RIFEBY B MEERE
M5 BELHRRRAELEMERAEDRA
AAREMBHRR R-T-—HNF=A=1+—
B AEBEUATREEXTHAER

Percentage of

Principal Paid-up equity interests

Place of activities and registered held by

Company name establishment  place of operation capital the Group
FEBFERE

IR B3 36 ITERBREREH BREMER ZBI
Jiangxi Ganghong PRC Property development, PRC RMB100,000,000 50%
AN ] FEHERME - hE AR #100,000,0007T B2 250

The aggregate amounts relating to the joint venture that
have been included in the Group’s consolidated financial

BEE ARRERMEE R & = XA B HE
ZEAMBHRRZABELR 22 EHFAEHIIW

statements as extracted from relating financial statements e
of the joint venture are set out below:

2014 2013
—B-IF —F-=f%
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT

Joint venture's results for the year ended 31 March BE=A=t-BHLEE

LEELECEE

Income LON - -
Expenses X (960) -
Loss for the year ENER (960) -
Group’s share of result of a joint venture for the year TEERE-RAEDEFNCEE (480) -
Group's accumulated share of result of a joint venture REBZHEE—RALEEEE (3,033) (2,553)
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17. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE
(Continued)

The Group (Continued)

17. REBDEIRER (&)

@ (&)

2014 2013
—E-MmE —Z-zF%
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT
Joint venture's assets and liabilities as at 31 March R=ZB=t-Hegt¥vEERERE
Non-current assets FRBEE = -
Current assets THEE 274,002 265,66
Current liabilities nHEE (180,067) (170,766)
Net assets BEFE 93,935 94,895
Group's share of net assets of a joint venture AEERE-Ra ¥ EEFE 46,967 47,447
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade and nBEHEE (TREEIHR
other payables and provisions) R FIEUREE) (180,067) (170,766)

At 31 March 2014, certain properties held under
development of approximately RMB148,508,000 of joint
venture were pledged against bank loans of the ultimate
holding company and a fellow subsidiary of Jiangxi
HongKelong Industrial Limited (TP REE X AR A R)
("Jiangxi HongKelLong”) which held 50% equity interest in
the Group’s joint venture.

Except for above, at 31 March 2014 and 2013, neither
contingent liabilities nor capital commitments are shared
by the Group.

Amount due from a joint venture was unsecured, interest
free and not repayable within 12 months from the
reporting date.

RZE—WAF=ZA=+—08 88 tEHAR
#148,508,0007T 2/ TEEBHRYETIFFEE AR
EEZAECEBS ZS0RENIMERESR
E¥BRAR (DIERAERRE]) 2&EZERAR R
—RERWB AR ZIBITERIEERR -

BrElEIN RZEB—NER_T—=F=H
—t+—H AEBEVEELLAEGBNE AR
i o

W —RELEERALEER  2ENER
RBEHRSE BB 12EAREE -
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18. PROPERTIES HELD UNDER

18. BHEEHPYE

DEVELOPMENT

The Group rEH
2014 2013
—ZE—-mEF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF AREFTT
Leasehold interests in land TR EE R 526,559 623,566
Development costs FEE R AR 592,122 430,241
Finance costs capitalised B AR B & R AN 35,775 12,237
1,154,456 1,066,044

Leasehold interests in land are located in the PRC and have
lease terms expiring from 2044 to 2080 (2013: 2043 to
2080). At 31 March 2014, certain properties held under
development of approximately RMB736,407,000 (2013:
RMB405,691,000) were pledged against bank and other
loans of the Group (note 25).

At 31 March 2014, properties held under development
amounted to approximately RMB395,267,000 (2013:
RMB654,236,000) were not scheduled to be sold within
twelve months.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, properties held
under development with a carrying value of approximately
RMB6,973,000 were transferred to investment properties
as these properties were under operating lease
arrangements with third parties during the year to earn
rental (note 15).

iiﬂﬁﬁiﬂ%\ uwpl fﬁ?‘fﬁﬂ%_%mmi
EEE@:%)\%E) cHRIZE—MF=A=+
—H - “HHAR¥736,407,0007C (ZE— =4
AR#405,691,0007T) 2 & THEFRYED T
B ANERAEBR ZRITREMER (M
25) °

RZE—MNF=ZA=Z=+—H “HARK
395,267,000 (= & — = F: AR %
654,236,0007T) < FHERYEN+—(EF AL
BETEIHE o

HE_ZT—=F=-A=+—HLEFER KA
BAHARY6,973,0007T 2 MEFRYEEREE
EVE RAAZEMEDREBEFRNEE =7
R 2 S EHELTH RIS (MIsE15) o
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19. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
The Group

Properties held for sale included property interests in land
located in the PRC with lease terms expiring from 2043
to 2080 (2013: 2043 to 2080). As at 31 March 2014, the
carrying value of the operating lease up-front payments on
the leasehold interests in land amounted to approximately
RMB62,974,000 (2013: RMB28,973,000).

During the year ended 31 March 2014, properties held for
sale with a carrying value of approximately RMB8,320,000
(2013: Nil) were transferred to property, plant and
equipment as these properties were designated as their
permanent offices for administrative use (note 14).

During the year ended 31 March 2014, properties
held for sale with a carrying value of approximately
RMB126,194,000 were transferred to investment
properties as these properties were under operating lease
arrangements with third parties during the year to earn
rental (note 15).

At 31 March 2014, certain properties held for sale of
approximately RMB366,830,000 (2013: Nil) were pledged
against bank and other loans of the Group (note 25).

—HFE=A=+—HILFE

19. #FEWZE
AEE

FEMEORETR Mo W ERR - FHEH
—EN=FE_ENZEFEER (ZZE—
S CEN=FERN\ERE) RZF
FZA=+—H G tHHEEEIZKELHERE
NEZEmEDNAARE62,974,0000 (ZF —
=4 : AR#28,973,0007T) °

E’\\\

HE-_Z—NF=ZA=+—HLFER  E@
TﬁiﬁAﬁmﬂooooE(_;——i m) 2

EMEEREYE  BELEE  RRAZ
—r%%?ﬁ?ﬁﬂi%f’ﬁﬁﬂ(ﬁﬁ B2 KAWNE (FF
¥14) -

HE-_Z—NF=ZA=+—HLFER  EM@
EHARE126,194,000 T 2 FEMEEESIK
BYWE RARZSWEDIREFRNEE=F
R 7 R ERELT RIS (MIzE15) o

RZZE-—MWME=ZA=+—H' AR
366,830,000 (ZE—=%F : &) v &5 TEFHE
WMETRAEB ZRITREMERERT (K
2¥25) o
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20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 20. EUWERRK

The Group AEE

The aging analysis of accounts receivable that were past 7 f {E Bl 3 B B8 4 AR 7% R (8 2 %80 HA FE AR K
due but neither individually nor collectively considered to ZEREOMT !

be impaired is as follows:

2014 2013
—ZE-F —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR%T ARETTT
Based on invoice date RERZEAHTEHE

Less than 3 months past due BEI LR =1EA 669 12
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a EEEERBECERKIBEEE TEIERE
number of independent buyers. Based on past experience, e BERBILR ZEZeRAHNEEEX
the Directors considered that no impairment allowance WHREXNEHRERDER B2 -

is required as there has not been a significant change in St EBE LR E B -

credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.

21. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 21. ENFEREMEKRKIE
RECEIVABLES
The Group The Company
KEE AT
2014 2013 2014 2013

“E-NE —T—=-F ZE-NE —T—=F
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETRT AREBTT ARETR ARETT

Prepayments (note a) FERFIE (FEta) 465,478 67,366 292 146
Other receivables (note b) H e IR (MisEDb) 51,756 85,460 - 13
517,234 152,826 292 159

Notes: B 5T -

(a) As at 31 March 2014, prepayment included a deposit paid (a) R—ZE—NF=ZA=Z=+—H > BENXES
to the Hangzhou Bureau of Land and Resources (#fi /| T BF—EIRNTMNTREIERROEZEE A
Bl + &8 /) of RMB412,200,000 (2013: RMB25,000,000) R ¥412,200,0000 (Z & —=ZF: AR ¥
to secure a land grant contract dated 28 March 2013 for 25,000,0007T) + LA gt B Az 5 A BT )T & f i
the acquisition of land use rights of the land in Hangzhou, Mtz TifFEAERGARA T —=4=
Zhejiang Province, the PRC. The total consideration of the B+ N \BztihZEAR - WEEEBARE
acquisition amounted to RMB506,000,000 and the remaining B AR®506,000,0007T @ AR EBHEEAMNE
consideration was disclosed in note 29. 29.

(b) Other receivables of the Group amounted to approximately (b) REE 7 H b fEl B4 A R #9,070,0007T
RMB9,070,000 (2013: RMB35,600,000) are interest-bearing (ZZT—=% : AR¥35,600,0007T) &FA1%
at monthly interest rate of 1% and repayable within one year. ZRRABWBER—FNEE - EfbEKFKIAL
None of the other receivables is either past due or impaired. RBEAIRRAVERE o H i JFE UK 3 T8 BT B N 458
The other receivables related to counterparties for which sk HF R AR -

there was no recent history of default.
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21. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 21.
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued) MeE -

(b) (Continued) (b)

The carrying amounts of other receivables approximate their
fair values as these financial assets which were measured at
amortised cost, are expected to be repaid within a short time
scale, such that the time value of money is not significant.

22. PLEDGED DEPOSITS AND CASH AND 22.
BANK BALANCES

RN FRIR R E BRI ()

(#&)
(%)
R ZFRBEHEK AT ENEREERR/NE

HHW BE - HMEWIENREEREL X FER
CEAREENERELTERX -

=

CEFAERUARRERBITHEES

The Group The Company
S 3| LN
2014 2013 2014 2013

—E-NE —T-=-F ZE-NE —T—=F

Notes RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
Piyst ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT
Cash and bank balances Be MifTEs 67,768 240,917 92 69
Deposit pledged against banking AR ARRRITEE
facilities granted to the mortgagees ik 2 FR (a) 37,272 31,724 = -
Deposit restricted for construction work R EARE R TIEZ TR 30,000 - - -
Deposit pledged for bank RRITREMERT
and other loans BRZER (b) & (0) 496,500 230,000 - -
631,540 502,641 92 69
Less: Deposits with original maturity B REHMAA=@ANE
over three months but within one year ~ BF B —E2FH (233,772) (31,724) - -
Less: Non-current pledged deposits B IERBEERER (330,0000  (230,000) - -
Cash and cash equivalents for the FAGARERERLZ
purpose of the consolidated RekReEEN
statement of cash flows 67,768 240,917 92 69
Notes: PEE
@) The deposits were pledged to certain banks as security (a) EoR Fﬁﬁﬂﬁ)ﬁ?ﬂ’i GHREEBTFHREE TR
in the PRC as detailed in note 31. These banks provided ITERER - ZERTRERBERTEHUR
mortgage loans to purchasers for acquisition of properties AREEZME - ZEFHERZBERE AR
from the Group. The pledge will last for the period from the T%ﬁ“é’i:“%%/\ﬁﬁﬁﬁifﬁﬁ%ﬁ“ Hit - B
date of draw-down of mortgage loans to the date when IR RS 5 BB -
the certificates for housing ownership are granted to the
property purchasers. Such charges will be released upon the
certificates are granted to the property purchasers.
(b)  The bank deposits of approximately RMB330,000,000 (2013: b) RZT-MF=/=+—H " R4.25%%4.68%
RMB230,000,000 with interest rate ranging from 4.25% to (2 — =% 4675%);*‘]%?&%2@& 11
4.68% (2013: 4.675%) was pledged against other loans due A AR 330,000,000 (ZF — =4 : AR
to be settled over twelve months after the reporting period %230,000,0007T) © Bt H fth & 34 £ 15K 1
(note 25) as at 31 March 2014. ZEERHRBEHE T _EAARNINREE
(HM15E25) o
(© The bank deposits of approximately RMB166,500,000 (2013: (0) RZFE—EF=A=+—8 BN TF3%%E3.3%

Nil) with interest rate ranging from 3% to 3.3% was pledged
against bank loans due to be settled within twelve months
after the reporting period (note 25) as at 31 March 2014.

ZRRAB ZIBITEROARE166,500,0007T
(ZZE—=%F:8) DRBETERELER %
g,)ﬁAH%E’\\ﬁ&iHﬂ{ﬁ‘f’_“ﬂ NEIEEE (ME
25) ¢
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22. PLEDGED DEPOSITS AND CASH AND 22, EERERURRERBITER
BANK BALANCES (Continued) (%)

At 31 March 2014, approximately RMB630,973,000 RZZE—WNE=ZA=Z+—8B" ' FHRF
(2013: RMB502,556,000) were cash deposited with banks MIRITHHEMERMEBCREBEROBA
or other financial institutions in the PRC. These balances K %630,973,000Cc (Z & —=F: AR¥
were denominated in RMB. RMB is not freely convertible 502,556,0007T) ° i EF4EHRAAREIE - A
into foreign currencies. Under the PRC Foreign Exchange REBITEBRLBBING - REFR ZINEE
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, HlERBIA R 4ETE - EERNEEERTE A%
Sales and Payment of Foreign Exchange regulations, the EEEEBETHERBELEINEER ZRIT
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for foreign currencies 1A R H RN o

through banks in the PRC that are authorised to conduct
foreign exchange businesses.

23. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUALS, 23. ENRM - EFTRIE - ARRIE
RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE AND OTHER R EHEARIE
PAYABLES
The Group The Company
rEW KAF
2014 2013 2014 2013

—E-NE —T-=F CZE-NE —T—=F
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 ~ RMB’000 RMB'000
B ARSTRT ARETT ARETR ARETL

Accounts payable BAER (a) 23,995 29,309 - -
Accruals, receipts in advance and FERE ~ BMFIER
other payables HitERRE
Receipts in advance EWHIE 358,027 255,705 - -
Accruals and other payables FEEHZ0IE I A B (S 0B (b) 295,192 174,867 64 64
653,219 430,572 64 64
Notes: B 5T -
() The aging analysis of accounts payable, based on invoice (a) ENERIREZEHAE ZRETOT ¢
date, is as follows:
2014 2013
—E-OF —ZT—=F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Less than 3 months DRR=1EA 13,083 25,405
3 - 6 months =ZXEA 3,165 135
6 months — 1 year NEAAZE—F 6,175 2,042
More than 1 year —FLE 1,572 1,727

23,995 29,309
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23.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUALS,
RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE AND OTHER
PAYABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

24,

Accrued construction cost and other project-related expenses
were included in accruals and other payables amounted to
approximately RMB105,804,000 as at 31 March 2014 (2013:
RMB151,343,000). The amount was accrued based on the
terms of the relevant agreements and project progress and
was not due for payment as at the end of the reporting
period.

As at 31 March 2014, other payables included an amount of
approximately RMB490,000 (2013: R\MB490,000), which was
payable to Jiangxi Dongjing Property Development Limited (T
RS EHEMZE AR Q) which held 49% equity interest
in the Group's subsidiary, Leping Feng Huang.

As at 31 March 2014, other payables included an amount of
approximately RMB9,751,000 (2013: RMB3,862,000), which
was payable to Shanghai Dingxun Enterprise (Group) Limited
(EERAEZE (£E) AR A7) which held 45% equity
interest in the Group’s subsidiary, Nanchang Dingxun. These
payable balances were unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.

As at 31 March 2014, other payables included an amount
of approximately RMB8,467,000 (2013: Nil), which was
payable to Jiangxi HongKelong. These payable balances were
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO
SUBSIDIARIES

The Company

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and

23. BNER® > Bt RE - ARFIE
REAMBAFRIEA (&)

BiRE - (%)

(b) RZE—WNF=ZA=+—8 " st ABHREX
HiEARBEZ EBAEERAREMIER A
B4 A A R#105,804,0000T (ZF — =4 :
AR¥151,343,00070) ° :Z 5 BB &R W
E;%ﬁﬂ%%ﬁ&lﬁaﬁrﬁiﬁﬁﬁéi&%;ﬁﬂﬂiﬁﬁk%mﬁ

R-TZE—NWFZA=+—H8 EMEMNRES
FEH B AREAL90,000t (ZE—=F : AR
490,0007T) MRIE - AXNFIARSFE
HBEBRAR  ZARFEREEWBR LT
BlE49% R&#E -

R-Z—NEFZA=+—8  HitbENZKEBRE
LB AR 751,000 (ZE—=F : ARK
3,862,0007T) MRE - AX N T EERAEE
(@) ARAQF  ZAREAREEHB AT
M RRAS%IKE - ZERMNFIEEH A EER
- BB RBRERERE -

R-Z—NE=ZA=+—08  HitbENKESRE
B EANRES 467,000 (ZT—=14F : #) I
H - AYFAFIEARRE - ZESRNRBLESRS
EIKF - B ERBIRBEREE -

24, B EATHIE A SIRUE
EAT
S ENZEAERN 2 ERARENL

repayable on demand. B -
25. BANK AND OTHER LOANS 25. |ITRHEMEN
The Group AEE
2014 2013
= —E-=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARET T ARETIT
Bank loans — secured IRITER — FiEHF (a) 495,173 145,000
Other financial institution loans Hih o ik EER
— secured — B (b) 628,500 388,500
Total borrowings HBEE 1,123,673 533,500
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25. BANK AND OTHER LOANS (Continued) 25. SRITRHEMER (&)
The Group (Continued) AEBR (&)
The analysis of the carrying amount of the bank and other RITREMERZEAES AT -

loans is as follows:

2014 2013
—E-NmE —E-=F
Note RMB'000 RMB’000
B sE AR®TR ARETTT
Current HE
Portion of bank loans due for repayment AR —ERFIEAEE
within one year or on demand BEREEZBITERLS 288,990 65,000
Portion of other financial institution BR—ENDEEES
loans due for repayment within BREREBREZHMER
one year or on demand BEETDD 20,000 34,000
Portion of bank loans due for repayment 78 B" FleIBERE BT (0
after one year which contain repayment BN (EREREZER)
on demand clause 66,183 -
375,173 99,000
Non-current i)
Portion of bank loans due for repayment B —E4Z|HEE
after one year RTERHS 140,000 80,000
Portion of other financial institution AR—FRIBEEL
loans due for repayment after one year Hiv & iz 528D 608,500 354,500
748,500 434,500
Total borrowings wEs 1,123,673 533,500
The Group's bank and other loans are repayable as follows: NEEEEE IR HEZRWOT :
2014 2013
—E-mEF —T-=F
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥ETR ARETTT
Within one year or on demand —ERNRIREK 375,173 99,000
In the second year RE_FNR 313,500 104,000
In the third to fifth year REZZFRFNRN 435,000 330,500
748,500 435,500

Total borrowings BEE 1,123,673 533,500
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25.

BANK AND OTHER LOANS (Continued)

The Group (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

At 31 March 2014, the bank loans amounted to
HK$315,000,000 (equivalent to RMB250,173,000) (2013:
Nil) and RMB245,000,000 (2013: RMB145,000,000) were
denominated in HK$ and RMB respectively and bore interest
at floating rates ranging from 4.71% to 8.61% per annum.

Bank loans amounted to RMB250,173,000 (2013: Nil) was
secured by (i) personal guarantee by Mr. Wong Lam Ping,
the controlling shareholder of the Company; (i) entire
present and future issued share capital of the Group’s certain
subsidiaries; and (i) the Group’s bank deposits denominated
in RMB amounted to approximately RMB153,000,000 (2013:
Nil) (note 22(b)) as at 31 March 2014. Besides, the building
ownership certificates of the Group’s investment properties
and properties held for sale of approximately RMB66,053,000
(2013: Nil) and RMB41,969,000 (2013: Nil) were taken into
custody by the bank respectively as at 31 March 2014.

Bank loans amounted to RMB235,000,000 (2013:
RMB125,000,000) was secured by (i) the Group's properties
held for sale and properties held under development
of approximately RMB270,845,000 (2013: Nil) and
RMB736,407,000 (2013: RMB74,008,000) respectively as at
31 March 2014.

Bank loans amounted to RMB10,000,000 (2013: Nil) was
secured by the Group’s bank deposits denominated in RMB
amounted to approximately RMB13,500,000 (2013: Nil) (note
22(b)) as at 31 March 2014.

Bank loans amounted to RMB20,000,000 was secured by
personal guarantee by Mr. Wong Lam Ping, the controlling
shareholder of the Company and the Group’s properties held
under development of approximately RMB138,825,000 as at
31 March 2013.

Other financial institution loans were denominated in RMB
and bore interest at fixed rates ranging from 6.15% to 7.95%
per annum.

Other financial institution loans were secured by (i) the
Group's property, plant and equipment, investment
properties, properties held under development and properties
held for sale of approximately RMB349,974,000 (2013:
RMB229,983,000) and (ii) bank deposits denominated in
RMB amounted to approximately RMB330,000,000 (2013:
RMB230,000,000) (note 22(b)) as at 31 March 2014.

As at 31 March 2014, the current liabilities included bank
borrowings of approximately RMB66,183,000 (2013: Nil)
that were not scheduled to repay within one year. They
were classified as current liabilities as the related loan
agreements contain a clause that provided the lender with an
unconditional right to demand repayment at any time at its
own discretion.

—HFE=A=+—HILFE

25. SRITREMER (&)
AEBR (&)

BaE
(a)

tg

A —mME=ZRA=Z+—H &85
31 5,000,000,% TEERAR %250 173,000
TL)(ZE—=F : &) K AR¥245,000,0007TC
(ZZ—=4%: AR%145,000,0007T) ZRTE
?ﬁ%EIJLA,%rciFME%HE BN TF4T1%%
8.61% 2 FB)FFIEET B

R-ZZE—ME=ZA=+—"HB 2BAARE
250,173,000 (ZZE—=4F : &) ZRTER
T AT & EEE TR (i)m@ﬂz:@w&%&
MKFEEZBAER: (VAEEETHBR
Z2EMRERAKDEITHRA &(um%lu
AREEERT TM # AR #153,000 00071:
(ZZ—=F ) (ffsE22(b) » ko R=F
—MWE=ZRA=+—H A&EEEED )“7%’]7,%/\
R#66,053,0007T (—ZZE— =4 : ) R ARE
41,969,000 (ZZE—=%F : &) v REWER
BEVECZERMAREECAZBITRE -

RZE—NWE=A=+—H 28AARE
B#1%235,000,00071( T —=ZF: ARK
125,000,0007t) 2 R 17 B 3 b o Bl AR
EEFEWELNARM270,845,000T (=
T-=fF:48) &$% MEPWEDHA
R %736,407,000 (= — =ZF: AR ¥
74,008,0007T) 1’&%&#

R-ZZE—NME=ZA=+—"HB 2BAARE
10,000,0007T (ZZE—=%: ) 2 RITEX
TAAEEUARBHEZRITIGTROARE
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EA:EE—EEEH :+—EI AR
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26. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)
The Group

At 31 March 2014, deferred tax assets/(liabilities) are
provided at the tax rate 25% (2013: 25%). The movement
in deferred tax assets/(liabilities) arising from temporary
differences are as follows:

e I RAR MR

—OF=A=+—HILFE

26. ELHELEE (AE)
A EE

R-ZE—NE=A=+—H BEEREEE A
(BfE) U E25% (ZZF—=F : 25%) 7Tt
B nERE=EELAZECHBELEE (&
&) 2Z8hmT -

Deferred

tax liabilities in

Deferred respect of fair
tax assets in value change
respect of of investment

provision for LAT properties Total

HipiE RRENELTFE

iRBEER BHEEZ
ZEEHEEE EEBEEE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT ARETT
At 1 April 2012 RZE——FmA—H 14,995 (13,589) 1,406
Deferred tax credited/(debited) REZEEA (k)
to the profit o loss ZIEIERE 4,711 (8,095) (3,384)
At 31 March 2013 and 1 April 2013 Eé:;ﬁ—iiiﬂ?r—ﬁ
—=#FMA—H 19,706 (21,684) (1,978)
Deferred tax debited to the profit or loss EA?E EE?IWFZ LT IE (4,694) (23,382) (28,076)
At 31 March 2014 R-ZE-MNE=A=+—-A 15,012 (45,066) (30,054)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carried
forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax
benefit through the future taxable profits is probable. The
Group has no material unrecognised tax losses to carry
forward against future taxable income at 31 March 2014
(2013: Nil).

Withholding rate of 10% is imposed on dividends
distributed to foreign investors. As at 31 March 2014,
deferred tax liabilities amounted to approximately
RMB40,284,000 (2013: RMB29,794,000) in respect
of aggregate amount of temporary difference of
approximately RMB402,840,000 (2013: RMB297,938,000)
associated with undistributed earnings of subsidiaries have
not been recognised. No deferred tax liabilities have been
recognised in respect of these differences because the
Group is in a position to control the dividend policies of
these subsidiaries and it is probable that such differences
will not be reversed in the foreseeable future.

B AEENIEE 2 HIARBR T AER -
HE LA B] BE 528 48 R 2R B SR Bt M| B2 3R 2 B RATR 1A
MBER/R -R-_FT-—WF=ZA=1t—H XK
[ 30 8 B AR FERR AR R B 1R A MR A IR B R 2R
ERBBA (ZT—=F: &) -

DIKTIEREE 2B TIILBIHE10%

BRBERX- R_FT-—WE=ZF=+—H8"
BB B 2R AR D

PIKBANBEE EREEES
4 A R #402,840,000T (Z T — = F:
A R #297,938,000T) v BEER B & E Zﬁ
AR ¥40,284,000L (ZZE—=ZF: AR¥
29,794,0007T) ﬁﬂi%w&ﬂ ° EEAZIKE@ﬁ
EEHZENB AR ZKE - BEEH
TR BGRER - E&I%mz@%ﬁﬁ
BRELERIBEE -
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27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. B
Number of shares RMB’000
BRIDEE ARETT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREME0.01ET 2 EiEk
At 1 April 2013, 31 March 2013 and 2014 NZE—=FMNA—H -
—E-ZER
T pmE=f=+-A 4,500,000,000 37,401
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.6 each BREE.6B T AR
At 1 April 2013, 31 March 2013 and 2014 NZE—=FMA—H -
—E-=FR
—E-ME=R=+—H 1,200,000,000 9,931

28. RESERVES

28. f##E

The Group

Details of the movements on the Group’s reserves are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
The nature and purpose of the reserves are as follows:

(i) Share premium

The share premium account of the Group represents the
premium arising from the issue of shares of the Company
at premium.

(ij)  Statutory reserves

According to the relevant PRC laws, the subsidiaries are
required to transfer at least 10% of its net profit after tax,
as determined under the PRC accounting regulation, to a
statutory reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50%
of the subsidiaries’ registered capital. The transfer of this
reserve must be made before the distribution of dividend
to the subsidiaries’ equity owners. The statutory reserve is
non-distributable other than upon the liquidation of the
subsidiaries.

REE

AREZREZDHEANGAERRDE -
GBZIEERA QDT

(i) RGEE

AR B2 B BRI A R Bl (B BT
PREEA 2 (B

(i) ZEEMRE

RIEEETEER  MWEARESRETEE
AOERTEE R RANED10%EEEE
ERE BEERBAEBRERNBARGEMER
Z250% > RRFEHERAR KBRS THER
AIERER AZAET  XERBEIADIK
HEBT B A RB BRESER AN
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28. RESERVES (Continued) 28. f#fE (&)
The Company ¥
Retained
profits/ Proposed
Share (Accumulated final
premium loss) dividend Total
Benf/
RiVaE (RAER) BRERRERS CH
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR®TT ARETT AR®TR
At 1 April 2012 R-ZE-—FmA—H 537,994 734 29,264 567,992
Profit for the year and total FRENRENZEKESRE - 38,475 - 38,475
comprehensive income for the year
Dividend paid ERRE - - (29,264) (29,264)
Proposed final dividend (note 11) BORAERR S (FEE11) - (38,741) 38,741 -
At 31 March 2013 and 1 April 2013 RZE—=F=A=+—H 537,994 468 38,741 577,203
RZZE-=5NA—H
Loss for the year and total FABBRFNEERGEE - (1,485) - (1,485)
comprehensive income for the year
Dividend paid ERRE - - (38,741) (38,741)
At 31 March 2014 W=2-mE=B=+-A 537,994 (1,017) - 536,977
29. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 29. EBEAREE
The Group AEE
2014 2013
—2-OF —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARETT
Contracted but not provided for in respect of EHCITNEREE
- properties held under development of the Group - REFERABETYE 515,044 182,274
- acquisition of a land use rights of land (note 21) — Wi BB 140 2 + b A
(MEE21) 93,800 481,000
On 1 April 2014, the Group fully settled the outstanding RZZE—NFNA—B AEBEE2HEHE
consideration of approximately RMB93.8 million in U EE L R R BT A TN T 2 L b & {8
respect of the acquisition of land use rights of the land REOBARBISSEELZEHRE - A&
in Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province, the PRC. The Group EEREEMMNmARBNELERBRA T —
obtained corresponding land use rights certificate issued MERAZ+N\B 2B ERES -
by the People's Government of Hangzhou City dated 28
May 2014.
The Company did not have any commitments as at RRABIRZE—NERZFTE—=F=A=+—

31 March 2014 and 2013. B I AT AR o
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30. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Group
(a) The Group had future aggregate minimum lease

receipts under non-cancellable operating leases in
respect of its properties as follows:

30. KEHERRE
A EE

(a) ARBEREVDERETAIRMBELEHEE
MR AR RWER 2 S KT EARFRA T

2014 2013

—E-QmE —E-=F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®BT T ARETTT

Not later than one year —FR 2,934 1,611
Later than one year and not —FLALETHBBRSF

later than five years 13,607 7,893

Later than five years RAEMN 5,889 8,225

22,430 17,729

The Group leases out its investment properties which run
for initial periods of ten to sixteen years, without option to
renew the lease terms at the respective expiry dates. None
of the leases includes contingent rentals.

The Company does not have any operating lease receipts
under non-cancellable operating leases.

(b)  The Group had future aggregate minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in
respect of properties as follows:

AEBEHHEEREDE BHEBETETRN
FEREEMARITEREYN HEME
KR -

ARBNERE A HIH L2 HE KA Z
MR EHESHE -

(b) AEBERVERETABHEEEHEM
RARRZ N 2 HERERRENT -

2014 2013

—E-mEF —E—=F

RMB’'000 RMB’'000

ARMT T ARBFT

Not later than one year —FR 121 151
Later than one year and —FLAETHBBRSE

not later than five years 16 16

137 167

The Group leases properties under operating lease
arrangements which run for initial period of one to three
years, with an option to renew the lease terms at the
expiry date. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

The Company does not have any operating lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases.

AEERBEEZHERHEENE - EHFE
—FE=F YA REMAMEZEOHED -
HEMEIARESE -

ARRAERBENAIBEHLEHEN N 2 E

MEEHESHE -
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31. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE
The Group

The Group has arranged mortgage loan facilities for
certain purchasers of property units and provided
guarantees to secure obligations of repayments. As at 31
March 2014, the outstanding guarantees amounted to
approximately RMB357,506,000 (2013: RMB309,153,000).
Such guarantees will be terminated upon earlier of (i)
issuance of the real estate ownership certificate which will
generally be available within one or two years after the
purchasers take possession of the relevant properties; or (ii)
the satisfaction of mortgaged loans by the purchasers of
properties.

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) In addition to the transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements,

31. BHER
A EE

AEEEALETYEENERLTHIZBER
VTHERZEERETREBER - N ZF—
ME=ZA=+—H BEREZERBELHEA
R #357,506,000. (ZE —=F: AR
309,153,00070) « ZZEERGR A TR FEAE
BRIE()VBEHEHEME#ERE (—RRER%E
EREYEZE —SIMFEARREMR) B )M

BREBRBERE -

32. BEFRS

(a) BREMBHRREMIEIFABEREZIRS
Kigepih REBECETUTERHE

the Group had the following material related party IR
transactions:
2014 2013
—F-mF —F-=F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARETT
Rent paid to a fellow subsidiary ENRZRNBARZES 279 253
Car park rent paid to a non-executive director Bt IEMITEEZ EEHAS 34 23

Rent paid to Pan Hong Investment, a fellow subsidiary of
the Group, for rental of an unit of office premises which
is held by Pan Hong Investment, based on the terms
agreed and signed on a tenancy agreement. Car park rent
paid to Ms. Chan Heung Ling, a non-executive director
of the Company, for rental of a car park based on the
terms agreed and signed on a tenancy agreement. As the
annual amount of the rents payables under the tenancy
agreements are less than HK$1,000,000, the continuing
connected transaction contemplated thereunder will
qualify as de minimum transaction under Rule 14A.33(3) of
the Listing Rules, that is exempt from the reporting, annual
review, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements.

RAEERZMBRFINBREMBE ZHEA
EMESEL 2 HAemME ENEBREZES
RSB ES DR 2 HEHHIERETT -
MEEFEMNENARRIERITE SR ML
wrtzEESHEIEETYERY 2
EmaEETET AR REREERZEN ZF
EfM4E £ % 1,000,000 T - WHE T #
ETZRHERERSBEERBE LMHERRE
14A33QR)VKAEAREREKERS  BEEAX
SERBETRE  FEEZ  AHRERE
STIEHEZIRTE ©
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b) Compensation of key management personnel
of the Group

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s directors
and certain of the highest paid employees, are disclosed in
note 13.

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's activities expose the Group to a variety of
financial risks which comprise market risk (including
foreign currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance. The Group currently does not have any
written risk management policies and guidelines. However,
the board of directors meets periodically and cooperates
closely with key management to analyse and formulate
strategies to manage and monitor financial risks.

The Group is not engaged in trading of financial assets for
speculative purposes. The most significant financial risks to
which the Group is exposed to be described below.

(a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value or
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rate. The Group's income
and operating cash flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates. The Group’s interest rate
risk mainly arises from deposits at banks, other receivables
and bank and other loans which bore interests at fixed
and floating interest rates. Bank and other loans arranged
at variable rates and fixed rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk
respectively. The interest rate and repayment terms of the
borrowing outstanding at the end of the reporting period
are disclosed in note 25.

32. BELRS (&)

(b) FEETEEEAEHM

AEBTEEEABZHEMN (BREEHART
EERETERSFMNEEZHFM) BERHE
13-

33. MREREEZEEEREE

AEBEBSAEERZZEVBRR - BiF
miZAR (BREINERR LR XRER) - FEEE
RERBDECRR AREZEERREES
HERESBMMS 2 PRI - Y= KEEH AR
SEMBRAZBENFNZERERE - KK
3R 55 I AT B S 2 RV R B IR R R 5 5 e
A EFECHAHGE LTERETBEEA
BETAE - A Kbl E REEIAEIE M EE
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B AREMES 2 RTBHERARGENT -

(a) F=RER

MERBREERTIAZAFEIRSRERT
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group’s bank balances also expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk due to the fluctuation of the
prevailing market interest rate on the bank balances.
The directors consider the Group's exposure of the bank
deposits is not significant as interest-bearing deposits are
within short maturity periods in general.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, management monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider hedging significant interest
rate exposure should the need arise.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a
financial instrument would fail to discharge its obligation
under the terms of the financial instrument and cause a
financial loss to the Group. The Group's exposure to credit
risk mainly arises from granting credit to customers in
the ordinary course of its operations. The Group is also
exposed to credit risk arising from the provision of financial
guarantees and the amounts of which are disclosed in
note 31.

The Group continuously monitors defaults of customers
and other counterparties, identified either individually
or by group, and incorporates this information into its
credit risk controls. The Group’s policy is to deal only with
creditworthy counterparties.

The Group’s management considers that all the above
financial assets that are not impaired for at the end of
reporting period are of good credit quality, including those
that are past due.

None of the Group's financial assets are secured by
collateral or other credit enhancements.

In respect of accounts and other receivables, the Group
is not exposed to any significant credit risk exposure to
any single counterparty or any group of counterparties
having similar characteristics. The credit risk for cash at
bank is considered negligible, since the counterparties are
reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings.

33. MBEREEEEREE (&)

(a) F=RER (&)

AEEZRITHEHRMARITHEER 2 IRITTHIHH
FppmeAEEEYRSRENRER - B
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%EZE ﬁm RTBERX -

AREE B A ENRE PR - A BEEE
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m 77~
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(b) fFERAR
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

()  Foreign currency risk

Most of the Group's transactions are carried out in RMB
which is the functional currency of the Company and
most of the operating subsidiaries. Exposures to currency
exchange rates arise from certain of the Group’s cash and
bank balances which are denominated in HK$. The Group
does not use derivative financial instruments to hedge
its foreign currency risk. The Group reviews its foreign
currency exposures regularly and considers no significant
exposure on its foreign exchange risk.

(d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not be
able to meet its obligations associated with its financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another
financial asset. The Group is exposed to liquidity risk in
respect of settlement of financial liabilities, including trade
and other payables and bank and other loans, and its
financial obligations, and also in respect of its cash flow
management.

The cash management of all operating entities is
centralised, including the raising of funds to cover
expected cash demands. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor current and expected liquidity requirements to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer terms,

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities
based on the remaining contractual maturity date.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.

Specifically, for term loans which contain a repayment
on demand clause which can be exercised at the bank’s
sole discretion, the analysis shows the cash outflow
based on the earliest period in which the entity can be
required to pay, that is if the lenders were to invoke their
unconditional rights to call the loans with immediate
effect. The maturity analysis for other bank borrowings is
prepared based on the scheduled repayment dates.

—HFE=A=+—HILFE
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)

33. MBEREEEEREE (&)

(d) %RBESER (F)

The Group AEE
On demand Total Total
or within More than undiscounted carrying
one year one year amount amount
EER
R—ER —FpRE  ABREH REAE
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR®TT ARETT AR®TR
At 31 March 2014 R-ZB-WE=A=t+-H
Accounts payable FET R IR 23,995 - 23,995 23,995
Other payables and accruals H At BT BRI R
JEEt AR 293,502 - 293,502 293,502
Bank and other loans BIIREMER 419,479 805,848 1,225,327 1,123,673
736,976 805,848 1,542,824 1,441,170
Financial quarantee issued: EfEL 2 BER -
Maximum amount guaranteed BREREH 357,506 - 357,506 -
At 31 March 2013 R-ZE-=£=ZA=1+-H
Accounts payable [ BEFR 29,309 - 29,309 29,309
Other payables and accruals Hit EAFIE R
JESTAR 178,542 - 178,542 178,542
Bank and other loans RITREMER 127,176 476,735 603,911 533,500
335,027 476,735 811,762 741,351
Financial guarantee issued: EAEE 2 B ER -
Maximum amount quaranteed BRERSHE 309,153 - 309,153 -

The table that follows summarises the maturity analysis
of term loans with a repayment on demand clause based
on agreed scheduled repayments set out in the loan
agreements. The amounts include interest payments
computed using contractual rates. As a result, these
amounts were greater than the amounts disclosed in the
“on demand” time band in the maturity analysis above.
Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the
directors do not consider that it is probable that the
bank will exercise its discretion to demand immediate
repayment. The directors believe that such term loans will
be repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements.

TERBINGEERERKEEGTNTEREFRE
B E s e EREFRREL ZHHA
D BB ERERAONRFEZFE
MR- BHit - WESBESN LA R B 54T+
[RER] BRMER T HREZERE - BRIIANE
BZBMBIR  EZUTIRBRITBITEENR
IR ERNBERE - EFHE - FHETHER
K& RIEER R e &R A HMmEE -
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)

33. MBEREEEEREE (&)

(d) %RBESER (F)

Maturity analysis - Bank borrowings
subject to a repayment on demand clause
based on scheduled repayments
MBS - REHEEREH
MEENFTEREREERINRTEE

On demand Total Total
or within  More than undiscounted carrying
one year one year amount amount
FEERH
R—FR —FHE RUERARE ARE#AE

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARETR
— 189,895 69,159 259,054 250,173

At 31 March 2014 RZE-NE=ZR=
At 31 March 2013 R-EBE—=F=A=

At 31 March 2014 and 2013, the Company’s held no
material financial liabilities and the Company ensure that
it maintains sufficient financial support from Group's
subsidiaries to meet its liquidity requirements.

The management has built an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework for the management of the
Group’s short, medium and long-term funding and
liquidity management requirements. The Group manages
liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking
facilities and reserve banking facilities, and by continuously
monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching
the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

(e) Fair value

The fair value of the Group’s current financial assets and
liabilities are not materially different from their carrying
amounts because of immediate or short term maturity of
these financial instruments. The fair value of non-current
financial assets and liabilities is not disclosed because the
carrying values are not materially different from the fair
values at the reporting date.

R-E—NER-_ZT—Z=ZF=ZA=+—H" &
RAVEBREERSMEE  BXAQFRER
FTEARBE RSB B R R 2 W% H# R A
ERNERBESTEK -

EEEBDRYBEE  RDESRAREEER
NERASEEH PHEERESUNER R
MBESCBEERR AEERBER TR
- ROTGEEMBARTEERE  IEHER
ZHRARERBRESRE  YEHTREERE
ERMBEREERDECAR

(e) 2A¥E

HRAEB 2 RS EERBENRKINE
R AtzFemT A AFEERR
HETEEANZR - ARHRE A B2 RAEESR
NFEWJMERNER - WA RKEBEFERD TR
BENMBEBEZRAFE:-
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33. BIXEREEEEREIE (&)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

()  Summary of financial assets and liabilities by () BRENEII2EHEEREEHE

category
The categories of financial assets and liabilities included in NThEREGeaBEiiickzemEERE
the consolidated statements of financial position and the EERAREMNAZIEE ¢

headings in which they are included are as follows:

The Group The Company
A%M £47
2014 2013 2014 2013

—E-NEF —T-=F —E-QNE —Z—=F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARETT ARETR ARETR

Financial assets TREE
Loans and receivables BERREYFIE
Accounts receivable FEUBR R 669 12 - -
Other receivables Hin W EIR 51,756 85,460 292 159
Amount due from a joint venture El—REEERE 135,470 126,702 - -
Amounts due from subsidiaries R B A R FR = - 269,219 309,601
Pledged deposits EEFER 563,772 261,724 - -
Cash and bank balances ReRBTEH 67,768 240,917 92 69
819,435 714,815 269,603 309,829
Financial liabilities tHEE
At amortised cost RN A
Accounts payable TR IR 23,995 29,309 - -
Other payables and accruals H At e 5008 R B T B 293,502 178,542 64 64
Amounts due to subsidiaries B RRFUR - - 8,083 8,083
Bank and other loans RITREMER 1,123,673 533,500 - -

1,441,170 741,351 8,147 8,147
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34. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

(i) To safeguard the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern, so that it continues to provide
returns and benefits for stakeholders;

(ii) To support the Group’s stability and growth; and

(i) To provide capital for the purpose of strengthening
the Group’s risk management capability.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and
shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future
capital requirements of the Group and capital efficiency,
prevailing and projected profitability, projected operating
cash flows, projected capital expenditures and projected
strategic investment opportunities. The Group currently
does not adopt any formal dividend policy.

Management regards total equity as capital. The amount
of capital as at 31 March 2014 amounted to approximately
RMB1,306,542,000 (2013: RMB1,191,064,000), which the
management considers as optimal having considered the
projected capital expenditures and the projected strategic
investment opportunities. The net debts-to-equity ratio at
31 March 2014 and 2013 were as follows:

34. EXEE
AEMERERZBRA

() HMBAEERELEZEN NEER
RS FFA ASRE R LA

(i) XEAFBEZRENMER: K&

(i) REHEEANMBEAEREEREEEN -

AEBEEGRTE RS RERAELEANRE - AR
REBREEARBMERKERRO®R - A
ERAEBRRECHFEREARKR - BEFK
BRAAMEN  BALERERE  FAHEXR
P RTABI RS IEIR B S - A& E B ATl &
RN EM EARBLEBOR

EEEBEZEATBEREAERA - R —
FZA=Z+—H BEX2BEHAARE
1,306,542,000c (= & — = F: AR ¥
1,191,064,0007T) - B EKLE ETBFT & AH
T RFEARBEERERKEE  REZECEE
BEE - R_ZE-—NFN-_T—=F=A=1+—
Az ESFEEERLENT

2014 2013

—E-MF —E=%F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARBFT

Accounts payable FETERER 23,995 29,309

Accruals, receipts in advance and FEETRUA - TRUERIA R H At

other payables e~ FR I8 653,219 430,572
Bank and other loans RITREMER 1,123,673 533,500
1,800,887 993,381
Less: Cash and bank balances B IRE NIEITERS (67,768) (240,917)
Pledged deposits 2RI (563,772) (261,724)

Net debts &5 %A 1,169,347 490,740
Equity M 1,306,542 1,191,064
Net debts to equity ratio B FEE R X 90% 41%
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CONSOLIDATED RESULTS mEXE
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
—2-% F——F —F-f =% —E-mE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTL AREFTT AREFTL AREFL ARETR
Revenue KA 196,920 340,198 515,181 559,918 476,339
Profit before income tax BRPT SRR & 109,834 175,395 200,694 198,180 214,363
Income tax expense FEMES (35,582) (51,694) (99,943) (72,960) (73,400)
Profit for the year ERT 74,252 123,701 100,751 125,220 140,963
Attributable to: T AL
Owners of the Company ARTFEA 74324 123,911 101,316 126,444 143,768
Non-controlling interests IR (72) (210) (565) (1,224) (2,805)
74,252 123,701 100,751 125,220 140,963
Earnings per share gRERN
Basic 2N RMB8.26 cents  RMB13.77 cents ~ RMB9.14 cents  RMB10.54 cents RMB11.98 cents

ARBB26%  ARM13777 ARMOM4S  AR¥I0547  AR11.98%

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, EQUITY AND HREBEE RERERE
LIABILITIES
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
—T-%F T —TCF —TF “E-pE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AREFTT ARETTT ARETR
(Restated)
(=)
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE 154,313 201,614 172,564 518,545 870,471
Current assets TBEE 1,535,790 1,379,918 1,621,887 1,802,687 2,388,071
Total assets BEE 1,690,103 1,581,532 1,794,451 2,321,232 3,258,542
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES BEkEE
Total equity R 616,493 735,524 1,096,404 1,191,064 1,306,542
Non-current liabilities EinE =L - 5,952 80,000 436,478 793,566
Current liabilities THaE 1,073,610 840,056 618,047 693,690 1,158,434
Total liabilities aaE 1,073,610 846,008 698,047 1,130,168 1,952,000

Total equity and liabilties ExRaEeE 1,690,103 1,581,532 1,794,451 232123 3,258,542
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MEES

Site Area Approximate
in respect Planned/ Effective  Percentage
ofentire  Actual Gross Group Soldand  Expected
Location Type project Floor Area  Tenure Interest ~ Delivered  Completion Date
EER
BEEAN  RE/ER SEGER AN
% £l {hER BiER F8 E& EAl  BERRAH
(59 m. (5g. m.)
(FrK) (@
COMPLETED PROPERTIES
BRINE
Nanchang Honggu No. 1568 Honggu Avenue, R, C 80,521 R: 116,214 R: Expiring on 100% R:98%  Completed
Kaixuan Phase 2 Honggu Tan Central (234429 16 September 2073 C:78%
District, Nanchang City, C: Expiring on
Jiangxi Province, the PRC 16 September 2043
mELANE—S hEIRERET RiRZEL=E B®I
qRERLE NATRBER
AR 15685 CRZZR=F
NATABER
Various retail units on No. 1568 Honggu Avenue, ~ C 80,521 12,700 Expiring on 100% - Completed
Level 1-4 and various Hongqu Tan Central 16 September 2043
office units on District, Nanchang City,
Level 6, 7, 9-13 of Jiangyi Province, the PRC
Sino Harbour
Kaixuan Center, Nanchang
Honggu Kaixuan
REAAFEER N T R_EM=F B%I
JRPOEETEE  AAELE AATABER
E&R6, 7,9-13E AR 15685
ETEFEEM
Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting No. 766 Jinchao Avenue, R C 190,753 R: 89,115 R: Expiring on 100% R:91%  Completed
Yuan Phase 1 Fuzhou City, Jiangyi C: 4,664 31 January 2080 C: 26%
Province, the PRC C: Expiring on
31 January 2050
MR ER - NG ) R:RZBN\5E B%I
EKET66S —A=T—BER
C:H-Zn%E
—A=T-REN
Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting Yuan ~ No. 766 Jinchao Avenue, R, C 190,753 R: 79,933 R:Expiring on 100% R:66%  Completed
Phase 2 Fuzhou City, Jiangyi (2,383 31 January 2080 -
Province, the PRC C: Expiring on
31 January 2050
IR ER REIRLENT RAZENEF B%T
SEAET66% ~R=1-BER
CRZFR%E
—A=T-HER
Yichun Royal Lake No. 299 Yiyang Avenue, RC 607,084 R: 80,456  R: Expiring on 100% R:83%  Completed
City Phase 1 Yuanzhou District, (10,597 29 March 2077 C 7%
Yichun City, Jiangxi C: Expiring on
Province, the PRC 29 March 2047
BEUM-5 HEIREEET RiRZBELE B%T
FNBERAB299% ZAZTABER
CRIZMEE

=R=thRER
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MEAE

Site Area Approximate
in respect Planned/ Effective  Percentage
ofentire  Actual Gross Group Soldand  Expected
Location Type project Floor Area  Tenure Interest ~ Delivered  Completion Date
BER
EfEEN  RE/ER SEEER  XMEN
3 £l fEER BiER F8 & Aol BEnRAS
(59 m. (sg. m.)

FER)

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

EEGHES
Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting No. 766 Jinchao Avenue, R.C 190,753 R: 121,405  R: Expiring on 100% NA - Q4CY2014
Yuan Phase 3 Fuzhou City, Jiangxi (4,489 31 January 2080
Province, the PRC C: Expiring on
31 January 2050
BNERER =1 REIREENT R:RZENTE Tl 2
EAETO6S —A=T-REN FEEART
C:RZER%E
—A=T-REN
Nanchang Sino Harbour No. 888 Huang Jia Hu West R, C 719,548 R: 137,668  R: Expiring on 55% N/A Q4CY2014
Kaixuan City Phase 1 Road, Nanchang C: 6,464 18 May 2072
Economic and Technology C: Expiring on
Development Zone, 18 May 2052
Nanchang City,
Jiangxi Province, the PRC
mEEkdi -5 HEIREMET RiRZEEZE T ol 2
HEMERNRLR EATNBER EMERAT
B CHRZZFRZf
EATNBER
Nanchang Sino Harbour No. 888 Huang Jia Hu R C 719,548 R: 169,763  R: Expiring on 55% N/A - Q1CY2016
Kaixuan City Phase 2 West Road, ;1,993 18 May 2072
Nanchang Economic and C: Expiring on
Technology Development 18 May 2052
Zone, Nanchang City,
Jiangxi Province, the PRC
mEgkdin—8 HEIREMET RIRZELE T 1 2
BERERMFYR EATNBER E-Z3RRT
B HTH088% CRZR-F
LATNRER
Yichun Royal Lake City No. 299 Yiyang Avenue, R 607,804 105,000 R: Expiring on 100% N/A Q1CY2015
Phase 2 Yuanzhou District, 29 March 2077
Yichun City, C: Expiring on
Jiangxi Province, the PRC 29 March 2047
BEIM—E HEIRERED R:RZBLLE T ol ——¥2
FMEERAE99% ZAZTABER £-ZRRT
CRZERLE

=R=thRER




126

Sino Harbour Property Group Limited ‘& #&FhE S @ AR AT Annual Report 2013/2014 F 5§

Property Portfolio

ES RS

Site Area Approximate
in respect Planned/ Effective  Percentage
ofentire  Actual Gross Group Soldand  Expected
Location Type project Floor Area  Tenure Interest ~ Delivered  Completion Date
BER
EfEEN  RE/ER REGER D
3 g fHER REER 9 Ef BAl  BEnRAH
(59 m. (sg. m.)
(¥%) (F7k)
FUTURE PROJECTS
AR
Nanchang Sino Harbour ~ No. 888 Huang Jia Hu R, C 719,548 688,900  R: Expiring on 55% N/A~ Phase3:
Kaixuan City West Road, Nanchang 18 May 2072 Q1CY2017
Phase 3-5 Economic and Technology C: Expiring on Phase 4:
Development Zone, 18 May 2052 Q1CY2018
Nanchang City, Jiangxi Phase 5:
Province, the PRC Q1CY2019
BEERdIN=Z1E  REIRLMET S 2 TER =B
BEMERMRLR EATN\BER IRt
ERHITE088% CRZFRZE EF-ERRT
EATNBER M
E\%
FEERI
iH:
“ENF
F2ERI
Yichun Royal Lake City No. 299 Yiyang Avenue, R, C 607,084 1,047,038 R: Expiring on 50% N/A~ Phase 3:
Phase 3- 6 Yuanzhou District, Yichun 29 March 2077 Q2CY2016
City, Jiangxi Province, C: Expiring on Phase 4:
the PRC 29 March 2047 QY2017
Phase 5:
Q4CY2018
Phase 6:
Q1CY2020
BRI =EAH NG RiRZBELE TER =B
FMEEGAEI99: “RZthEER “ZRE
CRZEREE FERRI
ZAZThBEER M -
TRt
F2EERT
a8
“F-\%
FMFERT
ek
ZBEF

F-FERT
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Site Area Approximate
in respect Planned/ Effective  Percentage
ofentire  Actual Gross Group Soldand  Expected
Location Type project Floor Area  Tenure Interest ~ Delivered  Completion Date
EER
EfEEN  RE/ER SEEER  MEN
3 BBl fHER BiER F8 Ef BAl  BEznRAH
(59 m. (sg. m.)
(Fk) (FAK)
FUTURE PROJECTS (continued)
ARER (£)
Leping Project Hushan Meiyuan R C 333341 394,800 R Expiring on 51% N/A  Phase T:
Reclamation Farm, 17 June 2074 Q4CY2016
Leping City, Jiangxi C: Expiring on Phase 2:
Province, the PRC 17 June 2044 Q4CY2017
Phase 3:
Q4CY2018
£7ER REIREETT R:RZELME TER -8
RUEEERES AATERER “TRE
C:RZZmmE FEEART
RNATERER —5:
IRt
FEERT
-5
“F-\%
FEERT
Hangzhou Ganglian Sino~ Southwest junction of C 20482 81,928  Expiring on 100% N/A~ Under planning
Africa Tower Project Moganshan Road and 6 April 2054
Shenhua Road, Gongshu
District, Hangzhou City,
Zhejiang Province, the PRC
MERGEARER  PENTEMTHER R_TOMF NER st
BT RETEARRN MARRER
PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT
BERENZ
Levels 1and 2 of Block 2, No. 1568 Honggu Avenue, C /A 4,461 Expiring on 100% N/A Completed
Unit 02to 06 on Level 1 Honggu Tan Central 16 September 2043
of Block 6 and a 3-storey ~ District, Nanchang City,
kindergarten of Nanchang  Jiangxi Province, the PRC
Hongqu Kaixuan
M E-R-E TEIRERET 0yl R_EM=F MER BRI
E-BOIZ06ER g LR AATABER
~E-ERHE HARE 5685
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MEES

Site Area Approximate
in respect Planned/ Effective  Percentage
ofentire  Actual Gross Group Soldand  Expected
Location Type project Floor Area  Tenure Interest ~ Delivered  Completion Date
BER
EfEEN  RE/ER SEEER  XMEN
3 BBl fHER BiER F8 Ef BAl  BEnRAH
(59 m. (sg. m.)

FER)

PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT (continued)

KERENR ()

Various retail units on No. 1568 Honggu Avenue, C /A 19,139 Expiring on 100% N/A Completed
Level 1-4 and various Honggu Tan Central 16 September 2043
office units on Level District, Nanchang City,

6-9, 14-24 of Sino Harbour ~Jiangxi Province, the PRC
Kaixuan Center, Nanchang
Honggu Kaixuan

BELATRAS D FEIREEENIAE R R_EM=F MER BRI
BETEEESRGS,  PUOBAAKES68H hATARER
14 UBETEFEEN

Various retail units on No. 299 Yiyang Avenue, C A 1268  Expiring on 100% NA Completed
Level 1and 2 of Block 2, 3, Yuanzhou District, Yichun 29 March 2047
6, 7 of Yichun Royal City, Jiangxi Province,
Lake City the PRC

BEUMGEL 36,78  REIREEET 0yl RZEMLE MNER BRI
F-RCBETEEEE  RNBREBKE299 ZA-thA

PROPERTIES OCCUPIED BY THE GROUP

HASEEE 2%

Level 25 and 26 of Sino No. 1568 Honggu Avenue, C /A 1,232 Expiring on 100% N/A Completed
Harbour Kaixuan Center,  Honggu Tan Central 16 September 2043

Nanchang Honggu Kaixuan ~ District, Nanchang City,
Jiangxi Province, the PRC

REL AT EER TEIRERETIAR TER R_EM=£ MER BRI
SR 25R26E P BAAKE568% AATABER

Unit 1502 of Entrance B of  No. 28 Zhongshan West R /A 166 Expiring on 100% N/A Completed
the South Building of Road, Xihu District, June 2069
Minshi Garden Nanchang City, Jiangxi

Province, the PRC

LETERERE TEIREEETEAR 0yl RZENE MER BRI
15028 hIlIABR28% RAER

R: Residential R: F=

C: Commercial C: EES

The “Planned Gross Floor Area” and “Expected [IREEEmmE] R [TEHRTKB 8] HREE

Completion Date” are based on the best estimate by BEZ&EMFEL - ZFH TR EHEER
the management. These figures may change as the EEME -

projects progress.
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